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ﬁGROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries are recognized in the industry
as one of the world’s largest circular knitted fabric manufacturers and has long been
a driving force in the global market through its vertically integrated operations
in spinning, knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing. The Group’s product range
also includes dyed yarns, sewing threads and garments. As a major fabric supplier
to garment manufacturers in over 40 countries that supply to internationally
renowned retail brands, Fountain Set Group’s worldwide sales reached HK$6.1

billion (US$788 million) in the financial year 2010.

Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (SEHK: 420) has production facilities in
the PRC, Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative offices in 5

countries and a global staff force of over 16,200.

To learn more about Fountain Set, please visit www.fshl.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A 51 & ¥}

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. HA Chung Fong (Chairman)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Mr. HA Hon Kuen

Dr. YEN Gordon

Mr. LAU Hong Yon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP
Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette

Company Secretary
Mr. WONG Kin Man

Registered Office & Principal Place of Business
Block A, 7/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Website

www.fshl.com

Principal Bankers
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Solicitor
Vivien Chan & Co.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Share Registrar

Tricor Secretaries Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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HONG KONG &8
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
EHEX (5E) ARLA

& PRODUCTION FACILITY - £ &%

CHINA
COTTON SPINNING 1845

Jiangmen Huilian Textile Company Limited
SIPImERABBRAE

Kaiping Hui Hua Textiles Limited

B FEEHBERAR

KNITTING & DYEING #5528
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited

IREEHABRLTF
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

BEHRESSBRAR

KNITTING, DYEING & PRINTING #1428 % EN1E
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles

Printing & Dyeing Co.,, Ltd.
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GARMENT MANUFACTURING 24

Dong Guan Hai Xing Apparel Co., Ltd.
RBEREERAA

Dongguan Fuguan Garment Co., Ltd.

REBRARERAA

Dong Guan FuYi Apparel Co., Ltd.

REERREBRLT

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.

ERAMARBRLTF

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited

SIRBESBERARE

Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd

EEAMHERERLTF
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SEWING THREADS MANUFACTURING 24 43 4 =

Dongguan Goldlink Thread Factory Co., Ltd.
RESERBBRLTF

TEXTILE MACHINERY MANUFACTURING %5 & BéAR 4
Jiangyin Jintian Machinery Limited

TREABMBRALR

JAKARTA BB hiE
GARMENT MANUFACTURING &4

PT. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang

COLOMBO AJ 3
KNITTING & DYEING $t4% & e

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited
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TRADING OFFICE - #5552
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Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited
RYBEAHBRBIRAE

Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
LERESFBESBRAE

HONG KONG &

RAW MATERIALS SOURCING JFHREE
Highscene Limited
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Fountain Set Limited
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Goldlink Thread Limited
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SALES OF GARMENTS X X85 &
Hiway Textiles Limited
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OceanStar Textiles International Limited
BESHHERERAR

Triumph Luck Limited

SEARDA

MACAO ;B F9
RAW MATERIALS SOURCING FUEHREE

Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
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TORONTO Z 1%
SALES OF DYED FABRICS & GARMENTS %5 ]2 i AK$5 &

Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Limited

BHGS (24) ARQF

MARKETING /
REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE
MBS RN / RE

NEW YORK £R#J
Fountain Set (U.S.A.) Inc.
BEHEX USA)BRAT

HO CHI MINH CITY #i75B3
Fountain Set (Singapore) Pte. Limited
- Vietnam Representative Office
BHEE g BABRAT
- BEARE

SEOUL HEl
Fountain Set Limited
- Korean Liaison Office

BHEXERAE - BERRE

SINGAPORE $i il
Fountain Set (Singapore) Pte. Limited
BHEE G BABRAR

# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

M RGHRE

2010 2009 Changes
HKSMil HKsMil 28
BEET BHEET
Operating Results EIEEE
Revenue 3 6,148.9 5,451.5 12.8%
Profit (Loss) ZR (E5E)
Total RE 223.8 (48.9)  557.7%
Profit (Loss) margin B (E5E) X 3.6% (0.9%)
Earnings (Loss) per share (cents) BREF (EE) (L)
- Basic —&EAR 28.2 (6.2)  557.7%
Dividends 1351
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EEEREFZ2REREER)
Per share (cents) B ) 1.0 0.0 100.0%
Dividend payout ratio RS b &= 3.5% N/A
Financial Position at Year End REEARERZMERR
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EEEREMZREREZR)
Net current assets REBEERE 1,403.9 1,568.4 -10.5%
Total assets EERE 6,866.0 6,054.2 13.4%
Long-term bank borrowings RHIRTEE 951.3 1,489.0 -36.1%
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 2,559.3 2,329.5 9.9%
Net bank borrowings IRITEEFE 1,888.9 1,527.0 23.7%
Total liabilities aERE 3,990.8 3,434.0 16.2%
Tangible net worth BRFE 2,625.4 2,393.9 9.7%
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEGER) 3.31 3.01 9.7%
Capital expenditure EAMX 268.1 279.5 -4.1%
(after inclusion of interest capitalised) (BEEELEEEZNELER)
Financial Statistics B # &5t
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EEEREFZ2REREER)
Current ratio TELE = 1.47 1.84
Long-term bank borrowings ratio RHRTEEL=E 0.36 0.62
Bank borrowings ratio IRITEELL =R 0.97 0.97
Net bank borrowings ratio RITEEFELER 0.72 0.64
Gearing ratio ERBELE 1.52 1.43
Return before tax on average equity BRBAZEHERRESERE 9.2% -1.5%
Interest cover ratio FE = 5.61 0.22
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS BARE R &t =

Revenue, Profit/(Loss) and Profit/(Loss) Margin Total Assets and Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
EXx®B EBN/(BE)REF/(EBHR)E BERERALNAHEEANEMLER
g HK$'M
EHéS;é\Aﬁ % HEAT
8,000 ; 7,000
71348 7,0230 6
7,000 s 6,000
6,000 4
3 5,000
5,000 2
4,000 1 4,000
. 0
3,000 -1 3,000
-2
2,000 -3 2,000
-4
1,000
X 489 238 1,000
o %
302'8\—16‘7.5\/‘ 7
-1000 -396.5 " 0,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
- - - [0 Total Assets B EL(E
[ Revenue & %48 W Profit/ (Loss) 2%/ (B518) M Profit/ (Loss) Margin 2%/ (§518) = 4 Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company 72 21 5 A 86 13

Net Bank Borrowings and Net Bank Borrowings Ratio Inventory and Inventory Turnover Period

(afterinclusion of proposed final dividend) T_ v 3
pat S p 5 . FERGF&EEH
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BEET HEET E]
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072 08
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Il Net Bank Borrowings $R1TfE &R {E Wl Inventory B
0 Net Bank Borrowings Ratio $R17{E & #ELL R Inventory Turnover Period 17 B 54

Source of Revenue by Geographical Segments
(billing addresses of customers)
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Source of Revenue by Business Segments
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13% 86%
4.0%
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY BAFZ IR =

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT GZEeEkRBER
Year ended 31st August,

BENAZ+—HLEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET TFET FERT

Revenue B 7,134,788 7,022,991 6,103,045 5,451,492 6,148,949
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities H®E £ EF| (E5i8) 387,193 228,010 (371,125) 8,280 250,095
Reversal of impairment loss on 3 [3) $= H B BT

amounts due from jointly RFRIERRE

controlled entities B REE 1,040 540 21,907 - =
Profit (loss) before taxation RRELATZ R (B518) 388,233 228,550 (349,218) 8,280 250,095
Income tax expense TRy (41,145) (16,240) (9,179) (12,475) (6,516)
Profit (loss) for the year =FERA (FHE) 347,088 212,310 (358,397) (4,195) 243,579
Attributable to: FEfh -

Owners of the Company AATEEA 306,772 167,481 (396,451) (48,928) 223,798

Non-controlling interests FERER 40,316 44,829 38,054 44,733 19,781

347,088 212,310 (358,397) (4,195) 243,579
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY BAFRZ I =

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION GEMBRREK

At 31st August,

RNANA=+—8
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T FiET T T FET

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,263,256 2,347,435 2,337,638 2,619,839 2,479,189
Current assets REEE 3,820,430 4,303,204 3,662,577 3,434,383 4,386,784
Current liabilities RBEE 1,248,522 1,781,472 1,488,830 1,865,990 2,974,955
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,571,908 2,521,732 2,173,747 1,568,393 1,411,829
Total assets less current EELBERRE

liabilities =L 4,835,164 4,869,167 4,511,385 4,188,232 3,891,018
Non-current liabilities FkRBER 1,835,514 1,784,711 1,812,191 1,639,475 1,077,923
Net assets EEFE 2,999,650 3,084,456 2,699,194 2,548,757 2,813,095
Capital and reserves EAXARGFE

Share capital [N 158,802 158,802 158,802 158,802 158,802

Reserves 15 2,639,513 2,706,858 2,289,353 2,235,079 2,474,523
Equity attributable to owners AEATEEBA

of the Company EihER 2,798,315 2,865,660 2,448,155 2,393,881 2,633,325
Non-controlling interests =R S 201,335 218,796 251,039 154,876 179,770

Total equity ERAE 2,999,650 3,084,456 2,699,194 2,548,757 2,813,095
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEiR&E

FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report to shareholders the results
of the Group for the year ended 31st August, 2010. The revenue was
approximately HK$6,148,949,000, an increase of 12.8% over last year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$223,798,000. Net profit margin under review was 3.6%, compared
with the net loss margin of 0.9% in the same period last year. Net profit
margin would be 2.1% if extraordinary gain in relation to the disposal
of an industrial building in Tuen Mun, Hong Kong during the year were
excluded. Basic earnings per share was HK 28.2 cents, a turnaround from

basic loss per share of HK 6.2 cents in 2009.

During the earlier part of financial year 2010, there were doubts in the
market on whether the recovery was real and sustainable. It became
apparent in the second half of the financial year that the world economy
had started to show some signs of recovery with export orders becoming
more stable. With the leadership of our new Group General Manager
since April 2009, the Group has concentrated strategically on improving
the overall production and operational efficiency, streamlining and
implementing stringent cost control measures. Through a series of
continuous and proactive management actions, we were able to reduce
administrative expenses to turnover ratio as well as distribution and
selling expenses to turnover ratio when compared with the previous
financial year. At the same time, the Group continued to expand market
penetration in China by putting more resources in our sales offices in
Shanghai and Shenzhen. We successfully maintained good and stable
working relationships with some of the most well-known local brands

and retailers in the sports wear and casual wear sectors.

During the year under review, the Group’s turnover increased by 12.8%
as compared with the previous financial year. In addition, the Group's
factories utilization rates were gradually normalizing as we increased
our market share. At the same time, operational efficiency also improved
especially in the second half of the financial year due to proactive
management measures. Heavy industry consolidation has continued
following the global financial crisis in 2008. This consolidation benefits
strong and large-scale players in the supply-chain as customers place
more confidence in partnering with more reputable, better established,

and well resourced fabric suppliers.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = EiRE

World cotton prices reached record high in recent history during the
financial year due to lower than expected production, thus resulting
in higher pressure on raw material sourcing, inventory management,
production cost and working capital. As one of the largest cotton yarn
buyers in the world, the Group has maintained many long and trusting
working relationships with major raw material suppliers over the years.
In addition, our stringent inventory management and control as well as
strong supply-chain management practices helped ensure reliable and
competitive supply of raw materials even under such volatile market

conditions.

On 13th November, 2009, the Group announced that it had entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with a third party for disposal
of properties in Tin's Centre Block No. 9 at a consideration of
HK$122,800,000. Tin’s Centre Block No. 9 is situated at Block No 9, No 3B
Hung Cheung Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong. Properties
to be disposed comprise approximately 84% of the Tin's Centre Block
No. 9. Tin's Centre Block No. 9 has been used for storage and rental in
recent years. We believe this to be a good opportunity for the Group to
realize our investment in these properties and reallocate the resources
for strengthening the Group’s financial position and supporting the
principal business operations. With reference to the net book value of the
properties as at 28th February 2010 and after deducting relevant costs,
the gain on disposal of properties was approximately HK$96,387,000.
All net proceeds were well received in March 2010 and used for

strengthening general working capital.

The Group maintained a healthy financial position for the period
under review. As at 31st August, 2010, the Group’s total cash and cash
equivalents of the Group approximately amounted to HK$670,376,000.
The stable financial position enables the Group to focus on the core
competence and to remain strong and flexible during the raw material
volatility period. The management is confident that we will be able to

continue to improve the Group'’s overall performance in the future.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEiR&E

In addition, the Group has set up a sustainability and corporate social
responsibility committee since 2009 and is committed to invest and
implement environmental-friendly procedures in all our production
processes as well as promote and encourage eco-living to our staffs.
With the aim to enhance energy efficiency, mitigating emission, and
provide sustainability initiatives, numerous green programs have been
planned and executed in factories and offices, such as replacement of
energy saving devices, recycle and reduce wastes and water, process re-

engineering and actively promote green culture within the Group.

DIVIDEND
The Board has resolved to pay a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share for

the year ended 31st August, 2010. The total dividend for the year would
be HK1.0 cent per share as compared with no dividend being issued last

year.

AWARDS
This year, the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Jiangyin Fuhui Textile

Limited was accredited “Hundred Star Enterprise”, “Best Ten International
Trade Enterprise”, “Enthusiastic Charity Enterprise” by the People’s
Government of Jiangyin. It was also awarded with “the Star of Enterprise”,
“the Award of Effective Input”, “Production Safety Enterprise” by the
Economic Development Zone of Jiangyin. The Group’s subsidiary,
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited, continued to accredit with “Fair-trade
Certificate” since 2006. Another wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. was
awarded “Certificate of Conformity of Environmental Management
System Certification” by the China Great Wall Quality Assurance Centre
as well as “Low Carbon Manufacturing Programme”(LCMP) certificate
by World Wide Fund For Nature (WWF). Three of our fabric mills
namely Jiangyin Fuhui Textile Limited, Dongguan Shatin Lake Side
Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co. Ltd. And Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited
received “Global Organic Textiles Standard (GOTS)” certificate by the
Institute for Marketecology In addition, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary Dongguan Fu Yi Apparel Co.Ltd. was accredited “Certificate
of Appreciation” by the Hong Kong Productivity Council, in recognition
of its contribution to cleaner production and participation in verification

project.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = EiRE

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

While the gradually recovering economy in the EU is pressured by
concerns over sovereign debt, the US is trying to jump start the sluggish
economic recovery with the implementation of the second round of
Quantitative Easing. Even though aggressive promotions by US retailers
in November resulted in a biggest sales increase in three years that
exceeded market expectations, the overall economy remains fragile since
bottoming after the financial crisis in 2008. Meanwhile, the continued
upsurge in raw material prices and general inflation in many developing
countries has driven up cost of products substantially in the textile
and apparel supply chain, including the average selling price (“ASP”) of
knitted fabrics. While, the higher ASP will become an inflationary factor
for the Group's revenue in the financial year of 2011, it is expected that
increase in net retail prices of apparel products is inevitable from spring
2011 due to substantial rise in cost. This may weaken the buying power
of brands and retailers which could in turn affect overall export demand.
Through our focus on products, services and efficiency, the Group will
continue to build upon our strong reputation and loyal customer base to

seek growth in export market share.

China has one of the fastest growing consumer markets in the world
coupled with strong government initiatives to further stimulate domestic
consumption. The Group will continue expand our sales in China by
strategically targeting both domestic and foreign branded clients as
the local consumer preference shifts towards better product quality,
safety and innovations. Our domestic sales have shown continuous
improvement since the establishment of our Shanghai and Shenzhen
sales offices as well as the active promotion of our product brand “fabric
by Fountain Set™” to the textile and apparel supply chain in China over
the past few years. We anticipate that our domestic sales for textiles and
apparel in China will continue to increase at a faster pace over export

during the next few years.
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The Group currently possesses a total of approximately 25 million pounds
of monthly fabric production capacity. Our latest fabric mill, Yancheng
Fuhui Textiles Limited, located in the Yancheng City of the Jiangsu
province in China has commenced production during this financial year
and will provide an enormous potential for future expansion of the
Group as the domestic consumption in China continues to grow and
when export market recovers. The Group targets to achieve an average
of three million pounds of fabric dyeing output per month in the
Yancheng plant during the next financial year. Eventually, the Yancheng
plant could be developed to house a fabric dyeing capacity of over ten
million pounds per month upon completion of all phases. The Group will
carefully monitor the market conditions and the development plans of
our customers before further investing and developing any additional

capacity.

Sales of garment during the financial year under review have dropped by
5.9% when compared with the previous year as a result of the weakened
market. As noted in the interim report, since the garment export remains
volatile and highly competitive, the Group will continue to consolidate

its garment production capacity in the next financial year.

Furthermore, in relation to proceeds from the disposal of land and
properties of the Group’s subsidiary, Dongguan Fuan Textiles Limited, the
Group has received second and third installments of RMB30,000,000 and
RMB40,000,000 respectively during the year under review. The Group
further received on schedule the fourth installment of RMB77,500,000 in
October 2010 and the fifth installment of RMB77,500,000 is expected to

be received in April 2011.

The Group will also further optimize its operations and infrastructure
to cope with the current market conditions while maintaining a solid
foundation to support future growth. These initiatives include the
ongoing review of management functions such as cost and performance
measurement, risk management and corporate governance. The Group
will also focus on reducing the net gearing ratio to a more sustainable
level over the next few years by improving profitability as well as
implementations of tighter control over cost, working capital and capital

expenditure.
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Based on the current assessment, the Group expects the industry
environment in the coming financial year to remain challenging and
maintains a cautiously optimistic view on the Group’s performance.
However, with our strategically located fabric mills in Dongguan, Jiangsu
and Sri Lanka as well as the growth in domestic sales in China, we are
well positioned to increase our market share following consolidation
of the supply chain and when market demand gradually recovers in
the future. Therefore, we are relatively more optimistic on the business

outlook for the longer term.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the profit attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$223,798,000, an increase of 4.5
percentage point when compared with the net loss margin in last year
or 3.0 percentage point if extraordinary profit in relation to the disposal
of an industrial building in Tuen Mun, Hong Kong during the year was
excluded. Gross Profit margin also increased slightly due to enhanced
factory utilization rate but was partially offset by increase in significant
cost items such as material and energy as compared with previous year.
The Group’s operation efficiency is gradually returned to a normalized
level because of the improved market environment. Furthermore, the
Group received second and third installments amounted totally to
RMB70,000,000 after the disposal of a Group’s subsidiary, Dongguan
Fuan Textiles Limited’s properties during the financial year of 2009/2010.

Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics, Sewing Threads and Yarns

During the year under review, revenue from the production and sales
of dyed fabrics, sewing threads and yarns reached approximately
HK$5,419,354,000, an increase of 15.9% as compared with last year, and

accounted for 88.1% of the Group's total revenue.

Production and Sales of Garments
Annual revenue from the production and sales of garments was
approximately HK$729,595,000, a decrease of 5.9% as compared with last

year, and accounted for 11.9% of the Group's total revenue.

Analysis by Customer Geographical Regions

The Group’s major customers were garment manufacturers located in
Asia and accounted for approximately 95.1% of the Group's total revenue,
a slight increase of 1.5 percentage points when compared with 93.6%
of last year. The remaining 4.9% was generated from sales to customers
based in America and Europe. A more substantial growth was achieved
in business with customers based in China, accounted for approximately
17.0% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group has established local
marketing offices or fabric mills and strategically targeted China as our

potential growth country in the past few years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Information

At 31st August, 2010, the Group's total assets amounted to approximately
HK$6,865,973,000, representing an increase of approximately
HK$811,751,000 over last year. Total assets included noncurrent assets
of approximately HK$2,479,189,000 and current assets of approximately
HK$4,386,784,000. The above assets were financed by current liabilities of
approximately HK$2,974,955,000, non-current liabilities of approximately
HK$1,077,923,000, non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$179,770,000 and equity attributable to owners of approximately
HK$2,633,325,000.

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term

borrowings and proceeds received from sale of properties.

Bank borrowings totally increased by approximately HK$229,727,000 and
the total amount of short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash

decreased by approximately HK$132,166,000.

At 31st August, 2010, the principal financial ratios (after inclusion of

proposed final dividend) were as follows:
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The sales and the purchase of raw materials of the Group are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. Bank
borrowings are also denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and
Renminbi and interests are mainly charged on a floating rate basis. In
addition, the Group mainly operates in China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from Renminbi exposure. The fluctuations in the
US dollars and Renminbi have always been the concern of the Group.
In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, the
Group will enter into appropriate hedging arrangements in accordance

with the Group’s risk management policies.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$268,104,000
(2009: HK$279,445,000) in the additions of property, plant and
equipment. The Group expects that capital expenditure for the next

financial year will be approximately HK$230,000,000.

Inventory

The Group's inventory approximately amounted to HK$1,938,592,000 as
of 31st August, 2010 (2009: HK$1,180,756,000). The substantial increase
is due to the upsurge of cotton and yarn prices. The inventory turnover

period is 137 days (2009: 94 days).

Employees and Emolument Policies

At 31st August, 2010, the Group had approximately 16,200 full
time employees (2009: 15,700). The Group’s emolument policies are
formulated on the performance of individual employee and on the
basis of the salary trends in the various regions, and are reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also
distribute discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their

contribution to the Group.

The Group has established a share option scheme for its employees,
and also provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing
education so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to

production, selling and management.

FEEBCZHERFEHRBUBT - TARAR
MAT - RTEETUBRT -EARARRE
- MEFELFBRERTFE - UH . NEEH
FTERTEHELEEE BRI RARERELEZ
HERE AEB-HBEIXETHARBER
ZREB - RARENMNERFZARE  AEESK
BRREERRFEHESENE TR -

BEXREX

RAFEB  AEBECSREL268,104,000 BT (=
ZTNF 279,445,000 B IT) LI MYDEE - #EES
KRB - EEEHT-HBRFENERAZN
230,000,000 & JT ©

78

TEER-Z-ZFNA=+—HZTFEHNR
1,938,592,000 & T (ZFZF I F : 1,180,756,000
BT) ESHENERDHARBIERDERNER
SR FEEENA137 A (ZEENF 94 H) °

BERMERE
EER=-ZE-ZFNAZ=+-B22HES
ABRR-BAT-BA(ZZEZAFE -8
EFEEA) MEENEEMSHRERER
FEENIAXRRKEHESFMBEMERE
ey SETEEREEZBAER  BE
BRREATEEASZBUMANEE 2 ERH -

EERAREERA-—EARETE TFTERMHE
HIFIREREBEMSHE  URERSREZE
E -HEREERE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT % &:43R

The Company has consistently adopted the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) promulgated by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our
corporate governance principles during the year. This report describes

how the Company has applied the principles.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions of the Code throughout the year except that, with respect
to the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer (“CEQ") were performed by the same individual. Considered
reasons are provided in the section of “Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer”.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of all directors, the Company confirms that all directors
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code

throughout the year ended 31st August, 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business was vested in the
board of directors (the “Board”). The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive management
team, and focus its attention on matters affecting the Company’s overall
strategic policies, finances and shareholders. The Board comprised nine
members, consisting of five executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors as at 31st August, 2010. The profile of all
directors, including chairman, executive directors and independent non-
executive directors are set out on pages 24 to 28. The relationship among
members of the Board (including financial, business, family or other

material or relevant relationships, if any) are also disclosed.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of respective independence pursuant to
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). As
explained in the announcement dated 3rd March, 2010, Mrs. FUNG YEH
Yi Hao, Yvette has not met the requirement under Rule 3.13(7) of the
Listing Rules since she was a non-executive director of the Company
prior to her re-designation as an independent non-executive director. In
view Mrs. FUNG prior to her re-designation did not have any executive/
management role or function in the Group and she had not been under
the employment of any member of the Group throughout such period
she was a non-executive director, the Company consider that Mrs. FUNG
to be independent. In this connection, the Company considers four

independent non-executive directors to be independent.

Eight Board meetings were held during the financial year. Directors
actively participated in each meeting in person, via telephone or video-
conferencing. Directors gave and received reports on the activities of the
operating divisions and presented papers supporting decisions which
required the Board approval. The Board consents were given by-vote at

the Board meetings.

The dates of the 2010 regular Board meetings were determined in 2009
and any amendments to this schedule were notified to all directors at
least 14 days before the meeting. Suitable arrangements were in place
to allow directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board

meetings.

If a director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and which the Board has determined to be
material, the individual director declared respective interest and was
required to abstain from voting. The matter was considered at a Board
meeting attended by independent non-executive directors who had no

material interest in the transaction.
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Details of the attendance of directors at these Board meetings and at two
other Board committees (the Audit Committee and the Remuneration

Committee) are set out in the following table:
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Meetings Attended/Meetings Held
HERBIERRE

Audit Remuneration

Name of directors Board Committee Committee

BEHR Exg EREEE FMZzEE

Executive directors HITEE

Mr. HA Chung Fong EMFRE 8/8

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor BEfRREE 8/8

Mr. HA Hon Kuen # BERLLE 8/8

Dr. YEN Gordon BEHEL 8/8

Mr. LAU Hong Yon WMEREE 8/8 11

Independent non-executive directors BV HEBITEE

Mr. NG Kwok Tung hBEREE 8/8 4/4 1/1

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi EX-3-% v 8/8 4/4 1/1

Mr. Chow Wing Kin, KRS - 8/8 4/4 1/1
Anthony, SBS, JP IREAEE » AFML

Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette* BEEE L 8/8 1/1

# Mr. HA Hon Kuen re-designated as executive director from non-executive # BERAERIPTESTRAERBTES R

director with effect from 1st March, 2010.

* Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Ha, Yvette re-designated as independent non-executive

director from non-executive director with effect from 1st March, 2010.

All directors accessed to the services of the company secretary who
regularly updated the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
director, wishing to do so in the furtherance of respective duties, might
take independent professional advice (through the Chairman) at the
Company’s expense. The availability of professional advice extended to

the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the company secretary and,
together with any supporting documents, were available to all directors.
Draft and final versions of the minutes were sent to all directors for their

comment and record respectively.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, which adhere to the principles, procedures
and arrangements set out above. Their terms of reference were approved
by the Board. The respective Committee secretary took full minutes of
the meetings of these committees and the work of these committees

was reported to the Board regularly.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing. Mr. HA Chung Fong is presently
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. Having considered
the current business operation and nature of the Company, the Board is
of the view that Mr. HA acting as both the roles of chairman and CEO is
in the best interest of the Company. The Board will review this situation

periodically.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the existing independent non-executive directors, were previously
appointed with specific terms, and the terms were extended for one
year up to 31st August, 2011. They are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the

“Articles”).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee for the
purposes of making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
reviewed by the Board with reference to the Code and are posted on the

Company'’s website.

The Remuneration Committee presently comprises five directors,
including the four independent non-executive directors and Mr. LAU
Hong Yon (executive director). The Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG
Kwong Chi.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and
detail of attendance is shown in the table on page 19. The work of
the Remuneration Committee during the year included the following

matters:

. make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive directors for the year ended 31st August, 2010.
The Remuneration Committee has considered factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere

in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

review and approve remuneration and performance-based
remuneration scheme of executive directors from time to time by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board

from time to time; and

. ensure that no director or any of respective associates is involved in

deciding their respective remuneration.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles, the Board shall have power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. A director appointed by the
Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company. The nomination should be taken into
consideration of the nominee’s skills and experience appropriate for the

requirements of the Company'’s business.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31st August, 2010, the fees charged by the

Company’s auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services amounted

to approximately HK$3,713,000 and HK$2,791,000 respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have been revised on 1st January, 2009 with reference

to the Code and are posted on the Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee presently comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company (namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung, Mr.
WONG Kwong Chi and Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony) and is chaired by
Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year and detail
of attendance is shown in the table on page 19. The work of the Audit

Committee during the year included of the following matters:

. provide recommendation to the Board on the reappointment
of external auditors, and to approve the audit fee and terms of

engagement of the external auditors;

. review and monitor external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discuss with external auditors before
audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations;

. monitor integrity of financial statements, interim report and annual
report, and to review significant financial reporting judgments

contained in them;

. review financial controls, internal controls and risk management
systems;
. discuss with management regarding the system of internal controls

and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have an
effective internal control system including adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of accounting and financial

reporting function, and their training programmes and budget;

ensure co-ordination between internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and

monitor the effectiveness of internal audit function;
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review financial and accounting policies and practices; and - REMERETBEREE R
review external auditors’ management letter, any material queries . RENEZEEBEERE N SEZIE A
raised by auditors to management in respect of accounting M~ SNEERZ BB AL 5T 04 BT IEER B
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s REERANEEBRENIMEREM
response. REEEBREE -
DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR EEREHBAMYERENER
ACCOUNTS
The directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the ESANEHEFRRBENWET - IPEZEED 2
accounts of the Company. The external auditors’ statement about their REBHEERETNEHEII N EI6RITE ©

reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 36 and 37.

INTERNAL CONTROLS A B B 4
The Board has kept the Company’s system of internal controls under EZECUHERNEAQARAZABEEHEUR
review to ensure its effectiveness and convened meetings regularly to REERE -EESSTHEHEE Twmet

discuss financial, operational and risk management control. CEEBEREMEEIESER -
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DIRECTORS
Mr. HA Chung Fong

Chairman and Managing Director

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 72, is the founder of the Group. Mr. HA is also the Honourable
Chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited and
Honourary Life Chairman of Textiles and Clothing Industry Association of
Kai Ping City. He has been accredited as Honourary Citizen of Dongguan
City, Kai Ping City, Enping City and Xinhui City in the PRC. Mr. HA was
presented with “Lifetime Achievement Award” from China Knitting
Industry Association in 2010. Mr. HA is also an Honourable Professor of
Xi'an University of Engineering Science & Technology. He also served on
various trade, industrial and educational advisory panels in Hong Kong.
Mr. HA is the father of Mr. HA Hon Kuen, Mr. HA Kam On, Victor and Ms.
HA Kam Yee and is the father-in-law of Dr. YEN Gordon.

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Executive Director and Group General Manager

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 45, joined the Group in 2002 as General Manager of the garment
business and became an Executive Director in 2004. He was promoted to
his current position in 2009. He serves as a Director of the Lions Kidney
Education Center & Research Foundation; a Director of HK Wuxi Trade
Association; a founding Member of the Hong Kong Professionals & Senior
Executives Association. He has been accredited as Honorary Citizen of
Jiangmen City in the PRC; and was also awarded the “Young Industrialist
Awards of Hong Kong” from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
2010. He possesses a degree in Production Engineering from Coventry
University, UK. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HA has over 10 years of
operations and management experience in the garment trading and

manufacturing industry. Mr. HA is the son of Mr. HA Chung Fong.
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Mr. HA Hon Kuen

Executive Director

Director of two subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 46, joined the Group in 1993 and joined the Group’s Board in 1996
as a Non-executive Director and re-designated to an Executive Director
on 1st March, 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HA had several
years’ working experience in the securities and finance field. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Science from the University College of Swansea, UK.

Mr. HA is the son of Mr. HA Chung Fong.

Dr. YEN Gordon

Executive Director

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 40, joined the Group in 1999 as the Assistant to Chairman and was
promoted to his current position in 2004. He serves as a Member of the
Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the People’s Republic of China. He is also the Chairman
of The Hong Kong Association of Textile Bleachers, Dyers, Printers
and Finishers; an Executive Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Textiles; a Vice Chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong; a
Vice Director General of China Knitting Industry Association; a Director
of The Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and Apparel Limited;
a Director of GS1 HK Limited; a Director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce; a General Committee member of the Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies; a member of the Textile Advisory Board
to the Trade & Industry Department and an Honorary Advisor of The
Vocational Training Council. Dr. YEN also serves as an Independent Non-
executive Director of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company. He holds a Bachelor degree in Manufacturing
Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master degree in Business
Administration from McGill University, Canada and a Doctorate degree
in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Prior to joining the Group, Dr. YEN has extensive experience in the
infrastructure sector. Dr. YEN is the son-in-law of Mr. HA Chung Fong and

is the spouse of Ms. HA Kam Yee.
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Mr. LAU Hong Yon

Executive Director

Member of Remuneration Committee

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 61, joined the Group’s accounting department in 1984 and was
promoted to Group Financial Controller in 1990. He was then promoted
to his current position in 1996. Mr. LAU holds a Master degree in Business
Analysis and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics from Lancaster
University, UK and University of Salford, UK respectively. Mr. LAU held
senior information technology and accounting positions in various

companies in Hong Kong prior to joining the Group.

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Independent Non-executive Director

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 60, joined the Group’s Board in 1993 as an Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. NG is a practising accountant. He is an
independent non-executive director of Universe International Holdings
Limited and a non-executive director of Wah Ha Reality Company
Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and a Licentiate in Accountancy
from McGill University, Canada and a Diploma in Chinese Law from
the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a Member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered
Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered Accountants of
Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants, The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors

and the Society of Registered Financial Planners.

EEREREBASEN

HMEELE

HITEE

FHWESEKE

FEEHEENE LA ZEE

BFEegm R—hWN\NEMASEE g5 M
ITR-NANEFEAREBUBRE - BN
—ANAREBAZERBU -WEEDHNER
Lancaster University &2 & B University of Salford¥&
SEEINEITBENRKEREE LBy o 7240
AEBZA  EEBEETBHEBELRETE
AR RET 2SR -

mEIREE

BUHBITEE

FREECLE

HHESEKE

REATR R-ANZENAEEBEESE AR
BUFATES - REERBHESIE - &
TRAEFEREZERARRAZBIFANTES
REEBEXARLGAZFUTES  ZMEL
ANABRRBLETRATA - HEAMEAEEBK
EHERBANETEARSRETXEREM
RORBHBEERXB - HEERBTBEFM
RE MEARBIRLEHFSFMHIE
MEABLERERBTFSHAAE  NEREF
SN E BEUKES BFBEASIM
NEREMPBRAMHEESE -



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

Independent Non-executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Aged 59, joined the Group’s Board in 1998 as an Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. WONG is the Managing Partner of Asian Global
Capital. Mr. Wong is an executive director of China.com Inc. and an
independent non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-tech (Holdings)
Limited, both being listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also an
executive director of CDC Corporation and CDC Software Corporation,
both of which are listed companies in USA. He has extensive experience
in the capital investment market. Mr. WONG holds a Bachelor degree
in Science and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. WONG served as the Chairman
of Hong Kong Venture Capital And Private Equity Association, the Vice
Chairman of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and the
Vice President of Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association. He is also
a Member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and the Honorary

Treasurer of Hong Kong Critical Components Manufacturers Association.

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 60, joined the Group’s Board in 2004 as an Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. CHOW has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong
Kong for the past 30 years and is a partner in the law firm, Peter C. Wong,
Chow & Chow. He is a non-executive director of Kingmaker Footwear
Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director of Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited, both of them are
listed companies in Hong Kong. He also sits on the board of The Link
Management Limited which manages The Link Real Estate Investment
Trust. Mr. CHOW is the Chairman of the Process Review Panel for the
Securities and Futures Commission, a member of Personal Data (Privacy)
Advisory Committee and a member of Appeal Board on Public Meetings
and Processions. He is also a Member of National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and a Member of the

Board of Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette

Independent Non-executive Director

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 49, joined the Group's Board in 2000 as a Non-executive Director
and re-designated to an Independent Non-executive Director on 1st
March, 2010. Mrs. FUNG is a Director of Hsin Chong International
Holdings Ltd. She also serves as an Independent Non-executive Director
of Tai Ping Carpets International Limited, a listed company in Hong
Kong. From September 2003 to September 2008, she was the Deputy
Chairman and Executive Director of Synergis Holdings Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company. From September 1999 to November 2009, she was
also an Independent Non-executive Director of Doxen Energy Group
Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong Catering Management Limited),
a Hong Kong listed company. She holds a B.A. Degree in Psychology
from Stanford University, USA, a M.B.A. from University of California,
Los Angeles, USA and a J.D. from Stanford Law School, USA. Mrs. FUNG
has over 10 years experience in legal practice in both international law
firms and corporations. She is a Member of the Council of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, a Member of the Board
of Managers at Hong Kong International School, a Council Member of
the Hong Kong Society for the Deaf and a Member of the Public Affairs

Forum (Home Affairs Bureau).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. YIM To Hung

Director and General Manager of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 47, joined the Group in 1982 and since then, he has dedicated
his entire career in the textile production and management. Mr. YIM is
responsible for the overall management of various subsidiaries of the
Group. He has over 25 years of solid experience in the textiles industry in

which over 15 years’ management experience in the PRC.

Mr. CHAN Yuk Yin

Director and General Manager of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 47, joined the Group in 1990. Between 1990 and 1997, Mr. CHAN
served in the Group’s sales department and was promoted to his current
position in 1997. Mr. CHAN is responsible for the overall management of
various subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 20 years’ experience in the
textile industry and holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology from

the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Ms. HA Kam Yee

Sourcing Director of the Group’s Material Sourcing Department

Aged 40, joined the Group’s material sourcing department in 1994 and
became the head of the department in 2002. Ms. HA is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s material sourcing operations. She holds a
Bachelor degree of Science in Computer Science from the University
of British Columbia, Canada. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. HA has
experience in the information technology field. Ms. HA is the daughter of

Mr. HA Chung Fong and is the spouse of Dr. YEN Gordon.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st August, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 38.

No interim dividend was declared for the year. The directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$1.0 cent per share
to shareholders on the register of members on 20th January, 2011,
amounting to HK$7,940,000 and the retention of the remaining profit for

the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of disposals in the investment properties of the Group during the

year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group had additions of HK$268,104,000 to property,

plant and equipment to expand and upgrade the Group’s manufacturing

facilities.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31st August, 2010 represented the retained profits of HK$619,561,000
(2009: HK$530,192,000).
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

FEEEE(EE)FRELE —z-z£58%
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Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. HA Chung Fong (Chairman) BEMFERE (FE)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor ERTEE

Mr. HA Hon Kuen (re-designated from a non-executive director to
an executive director on 1st March, 2010)

Dr. YEN Gordon

EERAE(R-Z2-—ZF=A—HE
HIFEHTESAERHITES)
BE#EL

Mr. LAU Hong Yon MEREE
Independent non-executive directors: BYEHITES:
Mr. NG Kwok Tung RERREE
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi F®REEE

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, s8s, JP
Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette (re-designated from a non-executive

director to an independent non-executive director on 1st March, 2010)

BXKMBERE  REmESE KA F#H+
BEEMELZLT (R=ZZE-ZFF=HF—Hi
HEHTESHATABIEHNTES)

Pursuant to Article 102 of the Company'’s Articles of Association, Dr. YEN RIERATABERMBIE 1021 BEHEBEL -
Gordon, Mr. WONG Kwong Chi and Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony shall ITHREZAERAKBAEENRNBERTZRE
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"). All BERGE((BERE)HRESE HEHESEE
retiring directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. ZEEHEERKEBRET-

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a BETABFEASLEREICESE HAEAE
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year BB YE—FRITAEFIFEECGEEEE

without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation. BROM R TR LMRESH -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES
At 31st August, 2010, the interests of the directors of the Company and

their associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Number of issued ordinary shares held as

EEZROKEBRAER

RZB-ZFNA=+—-B REXQTER
ZRBMEFEHFEUFRECEMATHRR L
MHRAAETARNESETRSRE 2BREST
Bl (MR#E<pA ) RBHAR BRI 2ER
AAREESBREBBAREARAREBRELD
AEE 2RO REBERDEZNT :

RAQXBROREBRONFRER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

share capital of

HERITEEREE the Company
Beneficial Other HEARRT
Name of director owner interests Total 21T
ExER EREEA HibRE wmE BA L *
Mr. HA Chung Fong 56,594,000 280,082,044 336,676,044 42.40
EMEEE (note)
(K1EE)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2,840,000 — 2,840,000 0.36
BERTEE
Mr. LAU Hong Yon 280,000 — 280,000 0.04
MERELE
Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette 70,000 — 70,000 0.01
BEEE L L
Note: et -

Mr. HA Chung Fong was deemed to be interested in 280,082,044 shares in the
Company by virtue of the set up of a discretionary trust, the Ha Trust, for the
benefit of his family and Trustcorp Limited (“Trustcorp”) is the trustee of the Ha
Trust. Trustcorp is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Newcorp Holdings Limited

(“Newcorp”).

HRERFEERERKNER Y —EHNERET
the Ha Trust » [ It # & 1 % 55280,082,0448 & 2 7]
B% 10 #E 2= ° Trustcorp Limited ([ Trustcorp |) Athe Ha
TrustZ 2 7E A ° TrustcorpANewcorp Holdings Limited
(TNewcorpl) ZZEMB AT ©
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Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations,
which were recorded in the register as required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 32

to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or

had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
At 31st August, 2010, the register of substantial shareholders maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in

the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:

FERRREMRRES

RZB-ZFNA=+—-B REXQTER
ZRPERPIEBARFIRENETERR EMEA
RoBREABHNESCREZESIN  UTR
REBARAAEFEELFLACHTREANE

TR

AR -

RAEDDRDEABERGOFEER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Number of shares  Capacity BB RIT
FTERRER RHEHE S IRt &
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 336,676,044  Spouse interest 42.40
S EY 7 e (notes 1and 3) FifBfER
(Hrat1K3)
Newcorp 280,082,044  Interest of corporation controlled 35.27
(notes 2and 3)  FTiE®IRYE BRI
(MteF2R%3)
Templeton Investment Counsel, LLC 46,724,566 Investment manager 5.88
REKE
Franklin Templeton Investments Corp. 63,439,989  Investment manager 7.99
REKE
Notes: e -

1. Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA Chung Fong, was deemed to be

interested in the shares.

2. Newcorp is the ultimate controlling shareholder of Trustcorp and Trustcorp
is the trustee of the Ha Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. HA Chung

Fong for the benefit of his family.

3. The interests of Mr. HA Chung Fong, Ms. TANG Kuen Mui and Newcorp were
duplicated.

1. BBERZIAENFTLEEERRB EmMEEFE
FREROES -

2. NewcorpJiTrustcorpZ R ERRBRRER M
TrustcorpBthe Ha TrustZ Z5E A » the Ha TrustA
EMFEERBERKIEMAR LN —EREET

3. EMFThAE BIBKRLZ L KRNewcorpZ EHEE
BH -
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Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital

of the Company as at 31st August, 2010.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

was less than 30.0% of the total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers taken together accounted for 16.1% and 31.7%,

respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company have an interest in any of the Group’s five

largest suppliers or customers.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations

totalling HK$1,210,000.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31st

August, 2010.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of a significant event occurring after the reporting period are set

out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.
On behalf of the Board

HA Chung Fong

Director

Hong Kong,
10th December, 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  ¥% 3T #% B BT 3R &

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
EHEX (5E) BRAR
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 132, which comprise
the consolidated and Company’s statement of financial position as
at 31st August, 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

oo
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  ¥% 3T #% B Bl 3R <&

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
August, 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
10th December, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ—F-—ZEFNNA=1+—HILFE

mEWRR

2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
Revenue = 3 5 6,148,949 5,451,492
Cost of sales $HE R A (5,154,109) (4,607,480)
Gross profit EF 994,840 844,012
Other income HiW A 71,117 64,794
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HESPEARBELER
held for sale BEEMBRE 6 - 104,657
Gain on disposal of property interests HEWEREDS 2 TBWE 13 96,387 =
Reversal of impairment loss on property, plant W ERREZ
and equipment VERIEEEER AT 6, 14 1,813 =
Reversal of impairment loss, net of BEBKEE - HRER
additional depreciation provided on transfer PEABEHEZEER
of assets classified as held for sale to property, W HERBHBZ
plant and equipment HRITE 6 - 11,094
Impairment loss on assets classified as held PEARELHEZEEZ
for sale WEER X 6 (1,801) =
Impairment loss on property, plant and W BERREZ
equipment REE X 6,14 (419) (2,456)
Distribution and selling expenses DHEREEER (244,071) (304,482)
Administrative expenses THEHA (560,564) (585,072)
Other expenses Hih&E A (59,006) (75,959)
Finance costs BE KA 7 (48,201) (48,308)
Profit before taxation RR B AT &R 250,095 8,280
Income tax expense FrEBiZ 8 (6,516) (12,475)
Profit (loss) for the year =FEEREA (FHE) 9 243,579 (4,195)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: EBEREERF (BE) :
Owners of the Company KATEEA 223,798 (48,928)
Non-controlling interests =R R 19,781 44,733
243,579 (4,195)
HK cents& ) HK cents;/B 1
Basic earnings (loss) per share BRERER (FE) 12 28.2 (6.2)




EEEE(RE)FARSS —=-z5458
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  ZF& 2 m R+
For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—F-ZTFENA=+—HIEE
2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HKS’000
e FExT FET
Profit (loss) for the year =EEER (FE) 9 243,579 (4,195)
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hth2mkz= (BIX) !
Exchange differences arising on translation of REBIEBEEZ
foreign operations EXER 29,316 (10,411)
Reclassification adjustment of translation & — KB D B EE R
reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary REZENDERAE 39 (766) (570)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for =FEHMEZEKRE (X)
the year 28,550 (10,981)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for =FEZEKE (BX)
the year “iE 272,129 (15,176)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for EBhEREEZE K
the year attributable to: (Bxk) 4 :
Owners of the Company RATREB A 239,444 (54,274)
Non-controlling interests IR ER 32,685 39,098
272,129 (15,176)

™
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 37st August, 2070
R-F—FFENA=1—F

HEUBRRAR

2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties REME 13 - 12,755
Property, plant and equipment Y3 BBRRE 14 2,319,780 2,283,789
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion FENHEERE-FRE
B 15 134,100 138,512
Consideration receivable — non-current portion BEWRARE - ERE 4 17 - 168,672
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 18 25,309 16,111
2,479,189 2,619,839
Current assets nBEE
Inventories FE 19 1,938,592 1,180,756
Trade and bills receivables EEREBEKIE 20 1,372,026 1,135,082
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENRE - - RERHEM
W FaE 21 209,979 217,108
Prepaid lease payments — current portion FENEERE-REBBH 15 3,057 3,093
Consideration receivable — current portion BWAE - RENEH 17 171,283 64,042
Derivative financial instruments fTESmIA 22 2,514 =
Tax recoverable GRS 18,957 26,267
Bank deposits with restricted use BERFIAZEZRITER 23 - 2,127
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITTER 23 42,438 58,015
Bank balances and cash RITEERES 23 627,938 742,400
4,386,784 3,428,890
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELEZEE 6 - 5,493
4,386,784 3,434,383
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables EERFEREMNRIE 24 867,513 610,859
Other payables and accruals HENHERESER 25 331,771 279,133
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders RIFER IR RRE 26 80,100 80,100
Consideration payable - current portion ERfRE-RBIH 27 58,446 28,672
Deferred income EEWA 28 1,458 1,458
Derivative financial instruments fTESmMTIT A 22 773 =
Tax payable FEBLIE 26,187 20,572
Restructuring provisions BHERE 29 730 4,689
Bank borrowings — due within one year IRITEE——FAEH 30 1,604,591 839,538
Bank overdrafts IRITEX 30 3,386 969
2,974,955 1,865,990
Net current assets REEEZREE 1,411,829 1,568,393
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERADERS

3,891,018 4,188,232




FEEHEE(EE)FARLE -—z-s=fxi
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %R & B ik R T
At 375t August, 2070
R-E-—ZFFNA=+—H
2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$000
iokd F#ET FET
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Consideration payable - non-current portion B E — e R E EB 7 27 - 46,316
Deferred income EFEUW A 28 68,538 69,996
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTIA 22 54,389 30,898
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITBE——FREHB 30 951,275 1,489,018
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 18 3,721 3,247
1,077,923 1,639,475
Net assets EEFE 2,813,095 2,548,757
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 31 158,802 158,802
Reserves #E 2,474,523 2,235,079
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AKAREE AEMLER 2,633,325 2,393,881
Non-controlling interests FERER 179,770 154,876
Total equity fEmBE 2,548,757

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 132 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10th December,

2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

HA Chung Fong

En¥F

DIRECTOR

EFE

JIEERREE

HA Kam On, Victor

ER%
DIRECTOR

EE

2,813,095

FBEINENHREUBEBRRER - —ZFF
TR+ HEHEEZESEBRZERK XET
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BAFSdR L |

At 37st August, 2070
R-F—FFENA=1—F

2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
iok=d FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BBERREE 14 4,932 4,598
Investments in subsidiaries MBARIRE 16 33,856 33,856
38,788 38,454
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEARE - ZERHEA
FE U 3R 18 21 17,131 2,076
Amounts due from subsidiaries M8 A B Fr K 7K IE 16 3,152,295 3,087,324
Derivative financial instruments TTESRMIA 22 2,508 =
Tax recoverable Al U (5] % 18 314 314
Bank balances and cash ROTEEREAES 23 32,831 138,398
3,205,079 3,228,112
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HtEAREREFER 25 13,085 14,442
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGB 16 668,485 486,653
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE——FAEH 30 658,344 466,163
1,339,914 967,258
Net current assets RBEEEE 1,865,165 2,260,854
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABAERE 1,903,953 2,299,308



- e o €3
FEEEE(EE)ARLT —z-z55u L
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BAFfEAR R
At 375t August, 2070
R-E-—ZFFNA=+—H
2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HKS’000
e FAET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMI A 22 54,389 30,898
Bank borrowings — due after one year IRITEE——FREH 30 873,867 1,382,082
928,256 1,412,980
Net assets EERE 975,697 886,328
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital &N 31 158,802 158,802
Reserves fhE 33 816,895 727,526
Total equity fEmBEE 975,697 886,328
HA Chung Fong HA Kam On, Victor
EnFE BERR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ—F-—ZEFNNA=1+—HILFE

Annual Report 2010

Attributable to owners of the Company

GEEREHR

KARER AR
Non-
Translation ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
*ER
EHfE AERE  REEA aE B ERAE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
TEr A TEx FEx TEx TEx
(note)
(i)
At 1st September, 2008 R-EBNE
hB-H (45,438) 37,785 2,099,672 2,448,155 251,039 2,699,194
Exchange differences arising on BERNEREE
translation of foreign operations LERER (4.776) = - (4,776) (5,635) (10,411)
Release upon disposal of a HE-BHELTR
subsidiary (note 39) Bl (W39 (570) - - (570) - (570)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BR)BA - - (48,928) (48,928) 44,733 (4,195)
Total comprehensive (expense) REE2HE(H%)
income for the year hELE (5,346) - (48928)  (54.274) 39,098 (15,176)
Acquisition of additional interest hE-BHEAR
in a subsidiary (notes 25 and 27) BIMER
(Wi2sgR2) - - - - (94260)  (94,.260)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ~~ SAREFEER
shareholders BR - - - - (41,001) (41,001)
At 315t August, 2009 RZBENE
NA=t+-H (50,784) 37,785 2,050,744 2,393,881 154,876 2,548,757
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEHEE
translation of foreign operations ZERER 16,412 - = 16,412 12,904 29316
Release upon disposal of a HE-EHEA RN
subsidiary (note 39) B (i#39) (766) - - (766) = (766)
Profit for the year REERM - - 2379 223,798 19,781 243,579
Total comprehensive income REE2EKNBER
for the year 15,646 - 223,798 239,444 32,685 272,129
Transfer Eil - 4,408 (4,408) - = =
Dividends paid to non-controlling B REFEER
shareholders it - - - - (7,791) (7,791)
At 315t August, 2010 R=%-3%
NA=t-8 (35,138) 42,193 2270134 2,633,325 179,770 2,813,095
Note:  The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages Bt EERBESTEREARZEMNEA (THED

of profit after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People's Republic of
China (the "PRC") as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries
as reported under the PRC statutory financial statements. According
to the provision of the articles of association of the subsidiaries, the

statutory reserves shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation

into share capital, expansion of the relevant subsidiary's operation and for

the welfare of the subsidiary's staff and workers.

HHBARANESRPEEIEMBHRERNZ
BEREZHZEHMBATE THERHBEZ
BRNBAENSHE REMBARAMEEA
BIMRSR - AERBETARBARHESE  B%
BA - ExAEANBLARNEBRWE QR
EIRTAHEF -
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“
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS #ZZEHESRER
For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BZ2 - FFN\A=1+—HIFE
2010 2009
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ®EER
Profit before taxation RRELATER 250,095 8,280
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of deferred income EFER A 2 5 8 (1,458) (1,458)
Depreciation of investment properties REMEZITE 121 483
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BBRBEZITE 239,674 204,378
Finance costs A& B A 48,201 48,308
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A RS
Wz (766) (544)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held HESHEARFELHEZ
for sale BEEMBRE - (104,657)
Impairment loss on property, plant and M MEERNREZ
equipment VEAEEEES 419 2,456
Impairment loss on assets classified as held PEABELHEZEE
for sale ZREE X 1,801 =
Impairment on trade and bills receivables, net EEREBERIE
WAEFE 24,870 5,306
Interest income FE WA (18,506) (10,397)
Gain on disposal of property interests HEMERR 2 IBKE 13 (96,387) =
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, plant HE Y E  HER
and equipment, other than property interests REZEE (FEF
YEE ) 14,740 2,193
Release of prepaid lease payments FEAEEREED 2,272 1,629
Reversal of impairment loss, net of BEB KL - HRER
additional depreciation provided on transfer PEABELEZEER
of assets classified as held for sale to property, M BBREEZ
plant and equipment HiRITE - (11,094)
Reversal of impairment loss on property, M HERSBHEZ
plant and equipment VERIEE =P A (1,813) -
Operating cash flows before movements in MEECEEAINEE
working capital REeERE 463,263 144,883
(Increase) decrease in inventories FER GEMm) R (753,855) 274,981
Increase in trade and bills receivables SEYVERE Y T ET Y 0b il (264,100) (82,865)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, deposits and ~ FE{FFIE ~ & R HabEU
other receivables MIEZE A () 23,312 (43,745)
Net movement in derivative financial instruments T4 €@ T ENE B FE 21,750 41,719
Increase in trade and bills payables EERZEESRIENZ M 245,106 101,263
Increase (decrease) in other payables and accruals HitEENRERETEAKN
& Os4>) 51,913 (39,812)
Decrease in restructuring provisions BHEBERD (3,959) (7,006)
Net cash (used in) generated from operations EE (A EMREFE (216,570) 389,418
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) EBE (2R BEFEH 279 (135)
Overseas taxation paid e FE (2,594) (4,287)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & 3ZFEIEHE (FTH) Fr8 K
RE&EE (218,885)

384,996
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ—F-—ZEFNNA=1+—HILFE

2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REHER
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE  HERRE (266,632) (274,236)
Payments for consideration payable XA AE (18,195) =
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREWE - W% -
properties, property, plant and equipment HERREBEURTEAN
and prepaid lease payments HERERERIE 119,808 6,698
Consideration received for sale of assets HESTBEABELHEZ
classified as held for sale BEEZKRNKE 80,971 =
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified as HESEARBELHEZ
held for sale EEMEBRE 4,903 43,122
Interest received BWFHE 3,484 5,538
Decrease in bank deposits with restricted use BERFIAZZRITER
Y 2 2,127 2,571
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEEFANRESEERE (73,534) (216,307)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEA
New bank borrowings raised HEEZRITHEE 2,773,938 2,047,125
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEETEE (2,548,595) (1,995,222)
Interest paid 2FFE (60,779) (56,054)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ETRETFHFERRR (7,791) (41,001)
Advances from non-controlling shareholders FERBRRZER - 3,886
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING RMEEBFE (AW
ACTIVITIES &R E 156,773 (41,266)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND HERZERBELEAN
CASH EQUIVALENTS OR 2>) 18 0% & (135,646) 127,423
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING REFEMRRNERER
OF THE YEAR ZEHAE£EA 799,446 676,714
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ExRSFHHTE 3,190 (4,691)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF RREERKERNEER
THE YEAR ZEHRELEHE 666,990 799,446
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRERARELER
CASH EQUIVALENTS: HEENDH
Short-term bank deposits HHIRTER 42,438 58,015
Bank balances and cash RITEERES 627,938 742,400
Bank overdrafts RITEX (3,386) (969)

666,990

799,446



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

Corporate Information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,

which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

Eligible Hedged Items

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial

Instruments
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ—F-—ZEFNNA=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
- amendments that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009 and 1st July, 2009

HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements -

Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
has had no material effect on consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) “Presentation of Financial Statements”

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes (including
revised titles for the financial statements) and changes in the format and

content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not resulted in a redesignation
of the Group's reportable segments (see note 5), nor changes in

measurement of segment information.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

ERFAIREETEEMBRE
ZA(TERMBHREER] (F)

FEFHERITAZRE(ERYBREENS
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Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments (Amendments to
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in relation
to fair value measurements in respect of financial instruments which are
measured at fair value. The amendments also expand and amend the

disclosures required in relation to liquidity risk.

FEERAABDLERERZEALUT CHEMEN
REMBHMT REBITHER BRI HBRE -

The Group and the Company have not early applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009’

Improvements to HKFRSs 20102

Related Party Disclosures®

Classification of Rights Issues*

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters®

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets’

Financial Instruments®
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement®

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments®
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BEZ—F-—ZEFNNA=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

! Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 and 1st

January, 2011, as appropriate

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no

material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Non-
controlling interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the original business combination and the non-
controlling shareholder’s share of changes in equity since the date of the

combination.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and their fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (continued)

Prior to 1st September, 2009, on acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary, goodwill was calculated as the difference between the cost
of additional interest acquired and the increase in the Group'’s share of
the carrying amount of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities. If the increase in the Group's share of the carrying amount
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, after
reassessment, exceeds the cost of the additional interest, the excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account

of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment

loss.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment (other than construction in progress and freehold land)
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their

estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property

assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments
Prepaid lease payments are carried at cost and released over the lease

term on a straight-line basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of

financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements
of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables and derivative financial instruments. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income

is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
consideration receivable, trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, bank deposits and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of

loans and receivables below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows

have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the respective credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written-off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in

the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on

an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders, consideration
payable, bank borrowings and bank overdrafts are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately. Derivative financial instruments
not held primarily for trading purposes are classified as non-current
assets or liabilities when the remaining maturity of the instruments is

more than one year.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ—F-—ZEFNNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its

present condition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower

of the assets’ previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants related to depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income
in the statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
over the useful lives of the related assets. Other government grants
are recognised as other income over the periods necessary to match
them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount

is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

A provision for restructuring is recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position on conditions that the Group has a detailed formal
plan and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the plan
will be carried out, by starting to implement that plan or by announcing

its main features to those affected by it.

For provision in relation to employee termination benefits where the
Group has a detailed formal plan and is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal, the liability and expenses are recognised when the Group
is committed to terminate the employment of an employee or group of
employees before their normal retirement date or provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary

redundancy.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ—F-—ZEFNNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

Retirement benefit schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/state-
managed retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ-—F-—ZFFNNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation

reserve).

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are as follows:

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and equipment
have any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts of the Group's property,
plant and equipment have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of judgment and
estimates on future operating cash flows and discount rates adopted.
Where the actual cash flows are different from the original estimate, a

material change in the amount of impairment may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future

cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-
moving and obsolete merchandise. When the Group identifies items
of inventories which have a market price that is lower than its carrying
amount, the Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as
allowance for inventories. If the market price of inventories of the Group
becomes lower than its carrying amount subsequently, an additional

allowance may be required.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with effect from

1st September, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (i.e. the board of directors of the Company)
for the purposes of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard (HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting”) required an entity to identify two sets of segments (business

and geographical) using a risks and returns approach.

In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format was geographical
segments by location of customers. As the board of directors of
the Company regularly reviews the operating results and financial
information by customers located in distinct geographical areas, the
application of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group's
reportable segments as compared with the primary reportable segments
determined in accordance with HKAS 14. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has
neither changed the basis of measurement of segment information. The
Group’s operating segments include Hong Kong (place of domicile), the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America,
Europe and Others, representing other geographical locations (mainly

Singapore and Macau).

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue (representing revenue
from the production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads, yarns and

garments) and results by operating segment.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5. 2REHR (&)

2010 —E-8F
Hong Sti Segment
Kong  ThePRC Taiwan Korea lanka  America Europe Others total Eliminations Consolidated
B3 L ) B8 HERT M B Ef4E SREE By 54
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
Fér TR TEn  TEn  FEn TR FEn TEn FEn TEr FEr
REVENUE LE30
External sales e 1,707,561 1,045977 910,026 609,452 631,836 246,681 53,148 944268 6,148,949 - 6,148,949
Inter-seqment sales (note) ~~~ AEBHE (H2) 4296142 2,951,383 - - 38679 37580 - 154593 782649  (7,826,496) -
Total segment revenue PREXEEE 6003703 3997360 910026 609452 1018634 284261 53,148 1,008861 13975445 (7,826496) 6,148,949
RESULTS 4
Segment profit (loss PBER (F8) 191,088 122881 130460 87,886 72,09 (725) 4912 134989 743,547
Interest income FBHA 18,506
Gainon disposal of property  HENERR 2 FiEUE
interests 96,387
Reversal of impairmentloss 41 BERZEZWE
on property, plant and BAEE
equipment 1813
Impaiment ossonassets ~ ARARELECEE
classified as held for sale ZREEX (1.801)
Impairment loss on property,  #1% + BE R %M
plant and equipment ZHERX (419)
Unallocated income ROBRA 3,292
Unallocated expenses APEBX M (563,029)
Finance costs HERK (48,201)
Profit before taxation KR ARA 250,095
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EER (&)
2009 —EENE
Hong Sti Segment
Kong  ThePRC Taiwan Korea lanka  America Europe Others total  Eliminations Consolidated
3 HE =) BE EEET 3! B HfBE SBEE B Ge
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fér  TEn  FEr  TEr  FEr  TEn  FEn  TEn FEn TEn FEn
REVENUE €58
External sales HihE 1,540,571 786,979 784,682 468,206 608,037 280212 68923 913882 545149 - 5451492
Inter-segment sales (note) ~~~ HBEEE (K 383594 2371953 - -8 485 - %688 6692047 (6692947) -
Total segment revenue AEERBAE 5376514 3158932 784,682 468,206 971,405 305,067 68923 1010710 12144439 (6692947) 5451492
RESULTS 1
Segment profit AEER 135,964 54607 71599 46,814 71342 6,564 2,863 90,745 492,498
Interest income FEUON 10397
Gain on disposal of assets HENBAKELE
classifed as held for sale BEZfishE 104657
Reversal of impairment HERXRE NRER
loss, net of additional ABRGFHEZER
depreciation provided on ENFE BERREZ
transfer of assets clasified 51 EHTE
as held for sale to property,
plant and equipment 11,094
Impairment loss on property,  41% + BE LR
plant and equipment ZEERX (2456)
Unallocated income RABMA 3417
Unallocated expenses ROBXH (563019)
Finance costs HEHA (48,308)
Profit before taxation BHARH 6,280
Note:  Inter-segment sales are charged at prices with reference to the prevailing Bt DEBREEZERDSRER2TSERME

market rates.

S

o
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7 EEH (&)
SESECEHREENEEN MRz gt
BEMR - 2 ERABEIEE S EHRHRR
WRR BB EhiRET ARRITERA
REMER (BEFBLEEZREBRNRLS &
EWMe BOBAZS)  FE FESRA-HE
LE/EEREZRERSERRMERS - It
BEERSBRENGIGEMEAAANESYE
RoHE - HABEERBBEALREHEHAIN
WE AZERREAAQRAESE2S -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit/
loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment without
allocation of central administration costs and other expenses (including
non-production related employee benefits costs, directors’ emoluments,
bank charges, etc), depreciation charges, interest income, gain or loss
on disposal/written-off of assets and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the board of directors of the Company for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis on
segment assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the

board of directors of the Company.

Hftt oz HEH
CEREAFESBBENYEE S8

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss

Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea  SriLanka America Europe Others Consolidated
E# HE aE B8 HEEF £yl BN HHME &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fiér FEr Fiér FEr Fiér FEr FiEr FEr FEr
2010 8-2%
Amortisation of deferred BEWAZEH - (1,458) - - - - - - (1,458)
Income
Impairment (reversal of EXREBRNEL
impairment) on trade HE (BEHE)
and bills receivables, net EE 7,197 5,067 7,631 - 114 (544) (40) 5,445 24,870
2009 b & Yk
Amortisation of deferred BRWA 23 = (1458) - - - - - - (1458)
Income
Impairment (reversal of EERERRNGEL
impairment) on trade HE (BERHE)
and bills receivables, net E 3,194 5,579 2,534 = 135 135 (29) (6,242) 5,306
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from the Group'’s products

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from

external customers by products.

5. 2WEHR(H)
REMERZBA

HEMBRRME

TRAZEREDAKERAMEFVRAZ

DT ©

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Production and sales of dyed fabrics, HNERHERST  BABRY
sewing threads and yarns 5,419,354 4,675,746
Production and sales of garments BEREENK 729,595 775,746
6,148,949 5,451,492

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-

i 15 B

REBEEPL  NEBZFERDEE (M) &Rit

current assets (note) at the end of the reporting period: BUBZZHWT :
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
The PRC 2] 2,248,900 2,219,217
Hong Kong &8 22,042 48,461
America E) 193 255
Sri Lanka HEE+ 181,160 164,879
Others Hfth it & 1,585 2,244
2,453,880 2,435,056

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and consideration

receivable.

K. FRBDEETERELEHEEERERARME-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers
No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total

sales of the Group for each of the two years ended 31st August, 2010.

6. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

During the year ended 31st August, 2008, management decided to close
down Dongguan Fuan Textiles Limited (“Dongguan Fuan”), a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, which was engaged in the manufacture
of dyed fabrics and yarns and classified those related assets which
were outmoded and aged, as held for sale, which had carrying values
of HK$255,222,000 and HK$5,493,000 as at 31st August, 2008 and 31st
August, 2009, respectively. On 27th April, 2009, the Group entered into
an agreement with an independent third party to sell a substantial
portion of those assets held for sale, details of which are set out in note
17. In addition, the Group also disposed of the other assets classified as
held for sale to independent third parties, resulting in an aggregate gain

of HK$104,657,000 recognised in the year ended 31st August, 2009.

Under this closure plan, management of the Group decided to terminate
employments of a significant number of employees of Dongguan Fuan
and certain plant and equipment of Dongguan Fuan were identified
for relocation to other factories of the Group. Accordingly, at the end
of the reporting period, restructuring provisions of HK$730,000 (2009:
HK$4,689,000) were recognised by the Group. Details of the movements

in these restructuring provisions of the Group are disclosed in note 29.

During the year ended 31st August, 2009, management relocated
certain plant and equipment with a carrying amount of HK$86,435,000
to other factories of the Group. Upon the transfer, the Group reversed
an impairment loss of HK$23,446,000 previously recognised and
provided an additional depreciation of HK$12,352,000 as if such plant
and equipment had not been classified as held for sale. During the year
ended 31st August, 2010, the Group further reversed an impairment of
HK$1,813,000 (2009: Nil) previously recognised on those relocated plant

and equipment.

TEEEE(EE)FRLE —z-z£58%

HEMBRRMEE

5. 2EER (&)

FHETERFZEHR
RBE-Z—ZFNA=T—HLMEFEZ
EF HERBEINZEFZBRAGEAEEHE
REEHEBE10% °

6. “ﬁ:ﬁ.%#&%iﬁé

REBEZE-ZEENFNA=T—HLEFE B8
BAESRZ=ELHBORERLAT (R
BZEM ZARAAEAEEZEZ2ENHED
A TERSHECHAREY REEZESB
BERE2EERZ-ZEZENENABE=1+—H
R—ZZAFNB=+—BZ2EEEZ A
255,222,0007 7t §%.5,493,0008 T  ED B A K
EHE - R-_ZSZAFNA=-+tH &X&EHE
E-ZBYE=FTUME AHERIHDZ
LERFELHEEE FEHNRME17 LI B
EEEANFNA=ZT-—HLEFER A5&H
THESEAGFEHECHMEETFBLE=
7 R 42 {E104,657,00058 T ©

EHEERGET  FEEEEBRELRLE
AAREREERZEE MRAERBRZ2E TH
BRIECRABEEZAEEHMEE - Bt -
RI|EMK > AEERREA 7300008 T
(ZEBZNF :4,689,0008TT) c BEEAEEZ
SEARBEZ2BF B N2 E -

REZE ZAFENA=+-—HLEE BE
Jﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁsmawoo;ﬁnz S THBERREE
BEAEBHMEE REBEZ xEEEME
S ATTE R Z BB 18 % 23,446,00058 T sHIRITE
12,352,000/ 70 » WM EEKERZERE D E
AEFHE -REBE-_Z-ZHENHA=1+—H
LFE AEFE - SREZSEBBHERR
BREA R 2R E1,813,0008 T (ZFEEH
Fom|) o
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6. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

During the year ended 31st August, 2010, the management identified
additional property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$1,211,000 that would be recovered through sale. Before
transferring them to assets held for sale, the management determined
that they have been impaired by HK$419,000 (2009: HK$2,456,000) using
fair value less costs to sell, by reference to the latest quotations from
independent third parties or recent market prices for similar assets at the
end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31st August, 2010, management further
recognised an impairment on assets classified as held for sale of
HK$1,801,000 (2009: Nil) by reference to the final consideration as agreed
with independent third parties for the disposals. At 31st August, 2010,
the Group has sold all assets classified as held for sales and the closure of
Dongguan Fuan was still in progress.

The closure costs and disposal gain in relation to the closure plan of
Dongguan Fuan recognised by the Group and their impact on the Group
are as follows:

6. TEARFHEZEE (A)

REBEZE=-ZE-FTENA=+-HLEEE B8
E%EJEEEM@211000%752%5%47&% i
BRBESETEBHEEMKE RERZIHE
Hj%zﬁéﬁu CEEEBZERBERKREMNE
EHBYE=AZBRIBERIRETERRA
AT EREERRECZSHIIE HER
&R B £419,0008 T (ZZZ N F © 2,456,000
BIT) °

REZ-Z-—ZEFN\A=+—HLFE B8
JE;E—&EE;%’\%*EF%M’E&EZQFZAEME
1,801,0008 T (ZZEZTNF &) > IS ER
EREEEEBYE=FEEZR ,ﬁ%ﬁﬁffﬁ?zmo
R-ZE-—ZFENA=+—-8 > AEEELEM
ERNEABFLECZEE MRAERZIZEBR
RFMEETH -

AEERREERAMATEBRIT ZBRARARIR
HEWRSEUAREBAEE 2ZEWMT ¢

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit (loss) of the Group for the year before ERARERE LA E 2R
closure costs and disposal gain in relation RARHERRAIZREE
to the closure plan of Dongguan Fuan AEBERF (EHE) 243,986 (109,789)
Reversal of impairment loss on property, W HERZEZRERREE
plant and equipment 1,813 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y MBRIREBZREBRXLX
equipment (419) (2,456)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held for HES BABELHECEEMBKRE
sale, net of tax (Br%12) - 96,956
Reversal of impairment loss, net of WEBLED  HIRBERIEREFE
additional depreciation provided on transfer HECEEZYH  HERETHEZ
of assets classified as held for sale to property, FHRITE
plant and equipment - 11,094
Impairment loss on assets classified as PEABELHEZEEZRBERXK
held for sale (1,801) -
Profit (loss) of the Group for the year =EEAKERF (&8) 243,579 (4,195)
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAEMAE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HKs’000
FET FHETT
Finance costs on: RE R
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BEREFAREEEZRITEE
within five years 48,020 52,962
Imputed interest expense on consideration BAREZEENSHX
payable (note 27) (Hiat 27) 1,653 555
Total finance costs Al E R AR AAE 49,673 53,517
Less: amounts capitalised (note 14) WALEEESRE (M 14) (1,472) (5,209)
48,201 48,308
Finance costs capitalised during the year arose on the general borrowing rEEFEEZRERERIH-—REEEE
pool and have been calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 2.06% BEE WU FEBERL06% (ZZZNE :220%)
(2009: 2.20%) per annum on expenditure of qualifying assets. FE O OBELEREER
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FISMxH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax: EFEEBIRE :
Hong Kong &8 6,795 =
The PRC Bl 3,307 10,378
Other jurisdictions Hih v E#h & 22 189
10,124 10,567
Under(over)provision in prior years: BAFERETIR (BERE)
The PRC H 5,741 2,094
Other jurisdictions Hih =i E (625) 137
5,116 2,231
Deferred tax (note 18): ERER IR (MfaE 18)
Hong Kong &E 8 (41)
The PRC H (8,901) 1,395
Other jurisdictions Hih B A& 169 (1,677)
(8,724) (323)
6,516 12,475
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the EBENGHDRREFEZMHTERRARER LU
estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5% (ZZZNF ! 16.5%) 575 °
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% starting from 1st January, 2008 onwards, while certain
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two calendar years and thereafter, they
are entitled to 50% relief from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the
following three calendar years (the “Tax Holiday”). The reduced tax rate
for the relief period is 12.5% for both years. The Tax Holiday will expire by
31st December, 2012.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the profit
generated from a subsidiary of the Company is entitled to exemption
from the Sri Lanka income tax until 31st August, 2015. Accordingly, no

provision for the income tax was made on the profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing

in the respective jurisdictions.

TEEEE(EE)FRLE —z-z£58%

HEMBRRMEE

8. FiEBixH (&)
RIBPECEMEHE (DEMBHEN RE
XFEBREBERGKG  R=FENF—A—H
B REE AR 2B ER25% MADAE
THENBEARTRMEEFERZHMNTE
TEFREBHEENRER=EEFRR 250080 F
BEMES ([RFE]) - AMEFE RS
WEARRER125%  RBEHER =T —=F
T=ZA=+—HE®W-

REFERFBEEAZEZRRER BAQAF -
BHBARRMEE BN TERRLH ER A
EH BEE-E-AFNA=+-BRL-E
I MR EFESERBREL GRS -

Ei R E L BERL RSB AREY
SRR ELE S
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
In February 2008, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (“IRD")

initiated a tax audit on the Company and its subsidiaries for the years
of assessment from 2001/02 onwards and is obtaining information and
documents from the Group. In March 2008, 2009 and 2010, notices of
estimated additional assessment (the “Protective Assessments”) for the
years of assessment 2001/02, 2002/03 and 2003/04 in an aggregate
amount of HK$14,352,000, HK$19,844,000 and HK$18,390,000,
respectively were issued to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company by the IRD. Regarding the Protective Assessments for the year
of assessment 2003/04, out of the aggregate amount of HK$18,390,000,
two Protective Assessments of HK$4,375,000 issued to the Company
and a Hong Kong subsidiary, respectively, were in effect alternative
assessments to that of an overseas subsidiary. Objections against
the Protective Assessments were lodged. For the years of assessment
2001/02 and 2002/03, full amount was held over unconditionally. For the
year of assessment 2003/04, amount was held over on the condition that
Tax Reserve Certificates in the amount of HK$1,600,000 were purchased.
The scope and outcome of the tax audit cannot be readily ascertained
at this stage. The directors of the Company consider that no significant
amount of additional profits tax will be payable under the Protective
Assessments and no provision for additional Hong Kong Profits Tax is

therefore necessary.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18.

8. Fisdixi ()
R-ZBENF=A SERER (HER)

ARAARENBARA-ZTE— ET-RH
BeRBEEETENBEEE Y EREAE
EEEENRXG - R=ZBENF=ZA =
EhE=ZAR-_Z-ZF5E=ZA BERH=
2T /Z=- -ZTT-/T=ZR=-FBE=/
ZORBFED B EH S $£14,352,0005 7T -
19,844,000 7T }18,390,00058 T & %8 =2 fd 5t
MFRBHN ((REMEFR]) FEARATREDF

ETHBRAR -B—TZT= TNRAREFEZ
REEM TR S 18,390,000 T2 25 EHM
IRARFE M TR & HR4,375,0008 T D BB H A
TARAR—BEBEBHBAREAR A RS
ShHE B A ] RO AR PR TR 2 R B R MY SRR
RUEREHETIHERERYE 22— /%

“RIEE ZERVEEZZHESEEE

BRGEH M_ZTZT= ZTURNFEZS
B2 R E1,6000008 T 2R FEERS -
HEREEE2HERGERNERRBRER
E-RARAESRARMERBETIREE/M
ZHNMASHSBYTEARESHELBEME
BREB 2 B1E -

BERIELER E 2 FIFEHNMIE 18
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation as follows:

8.

EEE¥(RE)FARSS

FEMBRRME

FrEH < H (&)

—B-TEEH

EFENBEXHERRARTOHRNOT

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Profit before taxation FRBt Al 2 R 250,095 8,280
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or EBERithE2BRERZ
losses in the jurisdiction concerned SR ENTIE 23,809 (4,077)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for EATEHNFRNHEZE
tax purpose 989 3,930
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose WABBERHNB R E (23,562) (6,185)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 5,116 2,231
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised HIEBEAREEIRNTESE 32,194 32,455
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised HEERIEREERNT R E 12,356 4,006
Income tax at concessionary rate REEBEFENREH (1,102) (4,662)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised  EABAERFERNFHIBEE (35,838) (775)
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously ERBTREERNEMELESR S
not recognised (7,914) (13,142)
Charge (reversal) of deferred tax provided on P % 0 BT B A B FR AN BLRY
withholding tax on PRC and overseas IEEBE R ()
subsidiaries 474 (1,315)
Others Hith (6) 9
Tax charge for the year EFEEBEXH 6,516 12,475
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9. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

9. REERN(BR)

HEMBRRME

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at =EERRMER)EMRTH :
after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration % BB 2 B 5,316 4,632
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRREBAZTFERRK 5,154,109 4,607,480
Depreciation of investment properties REMEZITE 121 483
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BBREEZITE 239,674 204,378
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ BEERAX L (BEEFIAK T
emoluments set out in note 10) 102 EE/M<E) 751,736 714,581
Impairment on trade and bills receivables, net EEREBERARERBESE 24,870 5,306
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, plantand H & FHEE¥ ¥ - SRR\ 2B
equipment, other than property interests (MR (BIEEEM
(included in other expenses) BHRA) 14,740 2,193
Net exchange losses (included in other expenses) EZEEFE(BREEEMEAR) 5,086 24,998
Net loss from derivative financial instruments PTEEMIACZERFE (BEE
(included in other expenses) Hih&ARA) 39,180 48,768
Release of prepaid lease payments included in BREEUTEERNENHEHERE
L]
- cost of sales —HERK 2,159 1,059
- administrative expenses —THEAR 113 570
and after crediting: REstA:
Amortisation of deferred income JEFE IR N (Y 8 85 1,458 1,458
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEKBARENE 766 544
Imputed interest income on consideration BURREBEZHERN B WA (M 17)
receivable (note 17) 15,055 4,869
Interest income B A 3,451 5,528
Net rental income from investment properties REWENE SR FE 2,590 4,655
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND

EEE¥(RE)FARSS

FEMBRRME

10 EEREEMEEHR

—E-TEEH

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=M<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2009: ten) directors ENEENENLV(ZEZENAFE: )P E—
were as follows: NESHMESWMT :
2010 —E-FF
Ha Ha Wong Chow FungYeh
Chung  KamOn, Ha Yen Lau Ng Kwong WingKin,  YiHao,
Fong Victor HonKuen  Gordon HongYon Kwok Tung Chi  Anthony Yvette Total
ERF Efz EEE BEH® MEE AEHR IBZE BAER SBEEH HE
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$S'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
Fér FExn FEr TFExr THxr TExr  FExn  FEr  FEr  TEx
Fees we - - 150 - - 250 200 200 150 950
Other emoluments Httif ¢
Salaries and other benefits ~ H &R E B/ 12,849 2,454 666 1,962 2,498 - - - - 20429
Retirement benefits BHRERIGE
scheme contributions #H - 184 13 136 165 - - - - 498
12,849 2,638 829 2,098 2,663 250 200 200 150 21,877
2009 —EENF
Ha Ha Wong Chow  Fung Yeh
Chung  Kam On, Ha Yen Lau Wai Ng  Kwong WingKin,  YiHao,
Fong Victor HonKuen  Gordon HongYon Yick Man Kwok Tung Chi  Anthony  Yvette Total
ERF Efiz EEE BER VEE GER MER IBZ Ak BEEH fafE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FEr FEr TFEr TExr TEx TEr FErn FEr FEr TEr  FEn
(note)
(Hit)
Fees we - - 150 - - - 250 200 200 150 950
Other emoluments Hi@e
Salaries and other benefits ~ HEREMBR 13398 2,545 387 2046 3150 2337 = - - - 23863
Retirement benefits BB E
scheme contributions % - 191 = 141 171 128 = = = = 631
13398 2,736 537 2187 3321 2465 250 200 200 150 25,444
Note:  The director resigned on 8th June, 2009. Btit . ZBEBER-_ZTZTAFASANBEE-

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year.

REAFE FAEBIEOEFNESTIAHE
DUERMBAEBEHERMARNEEEFHRBR
BREE AFESEESHEREMAME -
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees included three (2009: three) directors,
whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of the

remaining two (2009: two) employees are as follows:

10. EEREEMESE N ()

(b) EEME
EEMENERESEE=NU(ZFFThF =
) ES HMSHBHN LlME@ 8T M
(ZEZAF WAL EENMENT :

2010 2009

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

FET FiET

Salaries and other benefits HEeREMER 4,470 4,625
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRREE FIET B =X 307 318
4,777 4,943

Emoluments of each of the above highest paid employees were within

the band from HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 for both years.

11. DIVIDENDS
In respect of the year ended 31st August, 2010, no interim dividend

was declared while the final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders

in general meeting.

No interim or final dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended

31st August, 2009.

rtisNESMeNEERMEFENM SR
2,000,001 7T £2,500,00078 ST & E 2 A °

1. B2
REE-—E-ZEFENAS+—BLEE B8
SRPHRE MESCERBRBAURES
B0 AL - AR RRNBERG RO

RBE-ZZAEFNA=+-HLEE #E
IRBESERRBEPHREIRBRE -
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12. BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$223,798,000 (2009: loss of HK$48,928,000)
and on 794,010,960 (2009: 794,010,960) ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is not presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.

12. BREFBR (FR)
AATEEARESRERRF (FB) HRE

AARER AEMLRFERT223,798,000% 7T
“Z T HF C F51848,928,0008 L) RIE R
ERTRIT2EER794,0109608 (=Z2Fh

5 1 794,010,960) 5t & ©

HRMEFESREAEEZEBR Bt
B2 BRBERN (BR) -

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REWH
HKS’000
FHETT

cosT R
At 1st September, 2008 RZZEENFEAB—H 13,731
Reclassification from property, plant and Y MBRZEAA

equipment 1,638
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment ~ FRZEY % - WEERERE (1,193)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZBZAFENA=+—H 14,176
Disposals HE (14,176)
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFENA=1+—8H -
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st September, 2008 R-ZFEZENFRLA—H 1,051
Provided for the year =EERE 483
Eliminated on reclassification to property, FREYE  HERDERME

plant and equipment (113)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZEARENA=+—H 1,421
Provided for the year EEERE 121
Eliminated on disposals o £ B il 68 (1,542)
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFFENA=+—8H -
CARRYING VALUES AR &
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—=2FNA=1+—8H -
At 31st August, 2009 R=-BEARENA=+—

H 12,755
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
During the year ended 31st August 2010, the Group disposed of

certain of its property interests with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$26,130,000 to an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$122,517,000 (net of direct expenses of HK$283,000), resulting in
a gain on disposal of HK$96,387,000. The disposed property interests

comprised:

HEMBRRME

13. REWE (F)
RBE-_Z-ZFNA=+—-HLEE £&
B & £ Bk [ 42 826,130,000/ T 2 & T ¥ ¥ &
BRFBIYE=5 KRE%122,517,000% T (N
MRE R 283,000 ) BEEEHE RS
96,387,000/ T - HEZ V¥ EHBIE :

HK$’000

FHET

Investment properties REME 12,634
Prepaid lease payments FEHERE 2,872
Property, plant and equipment M B REE 10,624
26,130

Details of these transactions are set out in an announcement of the

Company dated 13th November, 2009.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st August, 2009
was HK$43,170,000. The fair value was arrived at based on a valuation
carried out by Centaline Surveyors Limited, a firm of independent
property valuers. The valuation was determined using direct comparison
approach with reference to comparable transaction available in the

relevant market.

The above investment properties were depreciated on a straight-line

basis over the shorter of the lease term or 50 years.

All of the investment properties of the Group were situated in Hong
Kong and were held under medium-term leases to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation before disposal.

ABZERBHBACRAAATDANA-S
ENFT—A+ZBZEER

AEBREVER=-ZEZAFENA=ZT—BH
N FE{E 543,170,0008 7T ot A FEETIR—
BYWYHEUNETHRUEMTERD ARG
BEEEETHEMES  WHEMGAEBEDUEEL
BEAKSZHENS LAHEBZXZMERE

LR EMEUBEREZRAEFHH0F (U

BERERE -

REBNMEREMELLNEBIL U HEAE
ERE HEAMAFERRESR RNEREHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZZ & Bt R RMIE
For the year ended 31st August, 2010
R _FE-ZTFENA=1—HULFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y15 - HBERRE
THE GROUP e
Furniture,
Freehold fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KAKE Bh%E
fiti L R&fE BEHRE BH ERIR |
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx TEx TEx Tz
cosT S
At 1st September, 2008 RZZEENENA—H 2,059 646,367 648,419 2,194,553 34,465 300,966 3,826,829
Currency realignment MEREER (138) (4353) (2,016) (11,601) (717) (572) (19,397)
Additions 2 - - 41,928 119,179 962 112,167 274,236
Interest capitalised (note 7) MEAIEEE (#7) - - - - - 5,209 5,209
Reclassifications: B
- from investment properties -BRENE - 1,080 = = = = 1,080
- to investment properties -ERENE - (2,734) - - - - (2,734)
- others -Hit - 57,006 62,583 8,380 - (127,969) -
Transfer from assets classified ~ ER AP EAEE
as held for sale HEZEE - - 2,249 94,986 294 - 97,529
Transfer to assets classified ERZAEABE
as held for sale HEZEE - - - (24951) - - (24951)
Disposals irk = (8,070) (20318) (92337) (2388) - (123113)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HREAR
(note 39) (Hi#t39) - - (555) - - - (555)
At 315t August, 2009 R-BENE
NB=+-H 1,921 689,296 732,290 2,288,209 32,616 289,801 4,034,133
Currency realignment MEREEE 420 21,130 3,391 17,606 1,066 1,279 44892
Additions £m = 67,799 59,166 71,205 3,057 65,405 266,632
Interest capitalised (note 7) RSLEER Hit7) - - - - - 1472 1472
Reclassifications Eilt - 287,645 10,792 8275 - (306,712) -
Transfer to assets classified EREDEARE
as held for sale HEZEE - - - (11,632) - - (11,632)
Disposals/written-off HE /i - (20,329) (40,001) (300,205) (1,807) = (362,342)
At 315t August, 2010 R-B-%%
NB=+-H 2,341 1,045,541 765,638 2,073,458 34,932 51,245 3,973,155
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - HBERFRE (&)

Furniture,
Freehold fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
land Buildings  equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KAKE BR 2B
i i 2 K& BEHSE B ERIE ffE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEx FEx FEx FiEx FiEx &7
DEPRECIATION AND HERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At Tst September, 2008 RZEENERA-R = 119,564 387,567 1,141,664 23,201 2523 1,674,519
Currency realignment PMEREER - (401) (1,480) (5,703) (383) = (7,967)
Provided for the year REERMA = 26,846 60,162 113,846 3,524 - 204,378
Impairment loss recognised ERENEARBELEY
upon transfer to assets BEREIZHE
classified as held for B (Hits)
sale (note 6) - - - 2,456 - - 2,456
Eliminated on reclassification ~ BEEREMEFHHE
to investment properties - (1,09) - - - - (1,096)
Reclassification Eil - - 2,508 - - (2,508) =
Eliminated on disposals R s - (2,569) (17,989) (77,511) (1,553) = (99,622)
Eliminated on transferto assets ~ BEZABABELEZ
classified as held for sale BERNH - - - (21,920) - = (21,920)
Eliminated on disposal of HE-BMBARRME
a subsidiary (note 39) (Hit39) - - (404) - - - (404)
At 315t August, 2009 R=ZBEAENA=1-H - 142,344 430,364 1,152,832 24,789 15 1,750,344
Currency realignment MEBREER = 2,494 2214 9,258 893 - 14,859
Provided for the year REERE = 34,707 59,342 142,478 3,147 = 239,674
Reversal of impairment loss HEBXEE - - - (1,780) (18) (15) (1,813)
Impairment loss recognised ERENEARELER
upon transfer to assets EEREAZHE
classified as held for B (Hits)
sale (note 6) - - - 419 - - 419
Eliminated on transfer to assets ~ ERZABABELEZ
classified as held for sale BERHME - - - (10,421) - - (10,421)
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /R
written-off - (9,265) (35,701) (293122) (1,599 - (339,687)
At 31st August, 2010 RZB-ZENA=1-H = 170,280 456,219 999,664 27,212 - 1,653,375
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 315t August, 2010 R-E-2£N\A=1+-AH 2,341 875,261 309,419 1,073,794 7,720 51,245 2,319,780
At 31st August, 2009 RZZENENA=1-H 1,921 546,952 301,926 1,135,377 7827 289,786 2,283,789
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - B RFRHE (E)
THE COMPANY b N
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HER - HKE
REE B wE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET

COST R
At 1st September, 2008 R-ZZEENFHALA—H 38,513 2,282 40,795
Additions # 0 568 = 568
Disposals HE (379) = (379)
At 31st August, 2009 RZEZhENA=1+—H 38,702 2,282 40,984
Additions b I 1,267 907 2,174
Written-off BEi (10) - (10)
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE-ZEFNA=+—H 39,959 3,189 43,148
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st September, 2008 R-ZZEZENFEHAA—H 32,539 2,042 34,581
Provided for the year =EERE 2,060 123 2,183
Eliminated on disposals o B EE (378) - (378)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZRENA=+T—H 34,221 2,165 36,386
Provided for the year =FEERE 1,776 64 1,840
Eliminated on written-off = 85 B Hi 8 (10) - (10)
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFNA=+—H 35,987 2,229 38,216
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFNA=+—H 3,972 960 4,932
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZBZERAFENR=+—H 4,481 117 4,598
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - WBERRE (8
The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are EE - MERREBZRRUE S EZLETA
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated residual values, BT RIGERRRETIERTE !

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil KAFEH Lt i3
Buildings 2% — 4.5% BT 2% — 4.5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 33% R EERRE 10% - 33%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20% i 28 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20% - 30% =R 20% - 30%
Construction in progress Nil EEIRE i1
The carrying value of properties shown above comprises: Y EREESRE !
Freehold land Construction
and buildings in progress
KAKHH
T REF ERIRE
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
F#ET FET FET FET

Properties situated in Hong Kong NREBUFHHEE

under medium-term leases HENME 5,385 15,887 - =
Properties situated outside R E BN
Hong Kong:
Freehold KAFE 2,341 1,921 - -
Medium-term leases or PHIEES R E L
medium-term land use rights fERRE 869,876 531,065 51,245 289,786
877,602 548,873 51,245 289,786
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. AN HEERIE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AEEWEMFEERERE
Leasehold land situated in Hong Kong NREEUPHEEEEN L
under medium-term leases 9,021 12,156
Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong NRBBUINMARHEEFEN
under medium-term leases or medium-term = tth 2 A HR £ it R AE
land use rights 128,136 129,449
137,157 141,605
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERMS WD :
Current assets REEE 3,057 3,093
Non-current assets EREBEE 134,100 138,512
137,157 141,605
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. BAS B 2 Bl =
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost IELETRMD RS H 33,856 33,856
Amounts due from subsidiaries FY B A B Pr X FRIE 3,708,278 3,643,307
Less: Impairment loss recognised R ORERKER (555,983) (555,983)
3,152,295 3,087,324
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB A B FRIE 668,485 486,653
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Movement in the impairment loss recognised are as follows:

HEMBRRME

16. FEAS Y B 2 B R ax (4)
ERZAERXZBHNT

2010 2009

HK$’000 HKS’000

FET FET

Balance at beginning of the year FHHER 555,983 560,043
Impairment loss reversed EEBEREERX - (4,060)
Balance at end of the year FHRERR 555,983 555,983

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable on
demand. Except for an aggregate amount of HK$751,030,000 (2009:
HK$919,924,000) which bears interest rate with reference to the
average effective interest rate of the bank borrowings of the Group,
the balances are interest-free. In the opinion of the directors, the
amounts are expected to be realised within one year from the end of the
reporting period and accordingly, such amounts have been classified
as current assets. At the end of the reporting period, the amounts were
not impaired as a result of the satisfactory assessment of the current
financial position and business prospects of those subsidiaries by the
management of the Group. An impairment loss has been recognised if
after the same assessment, the amount was considered not recoverable.
At the end of the reporting period, the impairment loss recognised is
related to individually impaired amounts and the relevant subsidiaries

are considered not in a good financial position to repay their debts.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. In the opinion of the directors, such amounts

have been classified as current liabilities.

MBARMRARELSBIRALEEREE
B2 £%8751,030,0008 TAIBRN B REF :
919,924,000 7T) » WEE RS EREERITHE
ENFTHERFRSE HHAARE - RE
EENER ZRENERIRBEHAE—F
RASER Bt ZERERIARDEE -
AREHL ARAEEEEERIHZEM
BRARAIZEEUMBMRRRERASAETZF
fh BN EERELERE MEETHBN
FEEEEREERAELINE  BEBRAR
EEX RBEHRL  FFERIZEEBRIIR
BENBERERBERABTESHEITER
HHHBMRRT ZHMEAR -

AMBARAZREREER REREERE
E-REEENER AERECIEARD
&

o
&
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. B KB 2 B (8)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31st August, RIZBEENFNA=ZT—BRZZE-—ZFFNA
2009 and 2010 are as follows: =E+—BERATNEEMNBARFENT :
Place/country of Issued and Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid value of issued share capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
EMAL/ BETR KRR
BRREE BREH BRARE/
WEARER it/ BR BA/BRBA BERAEEMLE TEEE
Directly Indirectly
EE GF3
% %
Dongguan Fuquan Garment Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC United States Dollar - 55.5  Production and sales of
SRRERERAR (Hia) H ("USD") 3,499,352 garments
3,499352% T HERHERK
Dongguan Fuyuen Garment Limited (note b) The PRC HK$7,500,000 - 95  Production and sales of
REBRERERAR (Mits) H 7,500,000% 7T garments
BUERHERK
SREREBRAT (hote a) (Hita) The PRC HK$15,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
HE 15,000,000 7 garments
BUERHEMK
Dong Guan Fuyi Apparel Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC HK$12,800,000 - 100 Production and sales of
SRBREBRAE (WiHa) HE 12,800,000} 7 garments
BUERHEMK
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 95 Dyeing, printing and sales
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) H (2009: HK$267,500,000) of dyed fabrics
SOMEBGADEERAR (M Zb) 307,500,000 T Fe OENEEeH
(2009 : 267,500,000 7C)
Folktune Limited (“Folktune”) Hong Kong HKS2 100 - Investment holding
BRERAR(BR]) ) 2B REER
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics
BHEXERAR O 3,000,000 ¢ and yarns
BARBYES
Fountain Set Textiles (B.C.) Limited Canada Canadian Dollar 80 - Trading of fabrics and
JITEPN (“CAD")500,000 garments
(Common shares) AREKES
500,00010 7 (& &R)
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/

16. FEAL B /B 1 R #E % (4E)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/

Issued and
fully paid

registration

share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
EMAL BETR LNVt
BRREX BREH BROTRE/
WEARER it/ Bx BE/ZRRE BERAEENLE TEEHR
Directly Indirectly
EE mE
% %
Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Ltd. Canada CAD300,100 51 - Trading of fabrics and
nex (Common shares) garments
300,100 7 (K BR) HRERES
Goldlink Thread Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 - Trading of sewing threads
EEHHERAT ) 5,000,000% 7T BORES
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100 Trading of yarns
ERERAH ) 3,000,000 7T EYES
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - 100 Trading of garments
BESHHERAR ) 2B KKE 5
Jiangyin Jintian Machinery Limited (note a) The PRC USD12,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing of
TS EEHERAR (M) HE 12,000,000 7o machineries
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD102,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales
IRBREGBBRAA (Hita) HE (2009: USD78,000,000) of dyed fabrics
102,000,000 7T and yams
(2009 : 78,000,000% 7T) i RENHE
BARBY
Jiangmen Huilian Textile Company Limited (note a) The PRC HK$28,000,000 - 100 Production and sales
IMmEBGSERAR (Hia) HE 28,000,00058 T of yams
HERHERY
Kaiping Hui Hua Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD615,414 - 100 Production and sales of
HYEZHBERAE (Hifa) HE 615414E T yarns
HERHERY
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 - Trading of fabrics and
BEROERERAR Bk 2B investment holding
AEESRREER
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

EEE¥(RE)FARSS

—E-TEFH L

mEMB|RMEE

16. B [ B 1 7] fE 25 (4)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
EMAL/ BETR KRR
BRREE BREH BRARE/
WEARER it/ BR BA/BRBA BERAEEMLE TEEE
Directly Indirectly
EE GF3
% %
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD16,079,462 - 55.5  Production and sales of
BERABERERAR (Hzta) FE 16,079,462 Tt garments
BERHERK
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Sri Lanka Rupee - 60  Knitting, dyeing and
Socialist 985,000,000 sales of dyed fabrics
Republic 985,000,000 & HE - FEANFEEESR
of Sri Lanka
HERFRE
HETRAA
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 - Investment holding
BEROBERAR ) 2B REEZR
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macao Macau Pataca - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs
EZ(AMBERERS) ERAT P (“MOP")100,000 and chemicals
100,000%) ¥ RYRALHES
BEMEXHHERAD A (hotea) (Hzta) The PRC HK$1,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
HE 1,000,00038 7T yamns
HERHERY
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 55.5  Trading of garments
HBAERLH ) 1,000,000 7T RRES
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD35,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales
SR REHBBRAR (Hta) H 35,000,000% T of dyed fabrics
and yarns
HHa - e
HEBAREY
Notes: Mzt -
a.  Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprises in the PRC. a. RAPBEUNIEBEECERINAT -
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC. b. RABEUEERLENEETRRKIINAT o

P,
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
of the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets
and liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debentures outstanding at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

17. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE

On 27th April, 2009, Dongguan Fuan entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to sell the parcels of land located at Dongguan
Fuan Textiles Complex, Changan Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong,
the PRC and certain buildings and furniture, fixtures and equipment
(the “Properties”) for a total cash consideration of Renminbi (“RMB”)
255,000,000 (approximately HK$288,136,000) payable in 5 installments
(the “Property Agreement”).

Of the above consideration, RMB30,000,000 was settled upon the signing
of the Property Agreement as the first installment. The second and the
third installment of RMB30,000,000 (approximately HK$34,474,000) and
RMB40,000,000 (approximately HK$46,497,000), respectively were settled
during the current financial year. The fourth instalment of RMB77,500,000
has also been settled subsequent to the reporting period. The last

installment of RMB77,500,000 is due for settlement in April 2011.

The receivable amounts are unsecured and interest-free. The fair value
of the deferred consideration at the date of initial recognition has
been determined as RMB231,643,000 (approximately HK$261,743,000)
based on the estimated future cash flows by applying a discount rate
of 9.8% per annum. As at 31st August, 2010, consideration receivable
of HK$171,283,000 (2009: HK$64,042,000) was classified under current
assets, representing the total amounts falling due within one year of the

reporting date.

Details of the above transaction are set out in the circular of the

Company dated 30th July, 2009.

&

HEMBRRME

16. FEAL B /B 1 R #E % (4E)
UEARBANMBRARDERAATDESRAA
HUAFERARFAEEARBRERRNEER
EEREERNEMMRI -AQXAESRHH
FIHMHBARNHEESIRRRERBANRIR -

REAFELERIEAFEEARKE HBEQ
R E I EER S -

17. EWRKE

R-ZEZAENA-+tH RERLHE—
EBUE=FTLHE UHEVLRFERE
RERETERETERERZTHAHAN
THRETFEF HM LERRZE (ZEY
#]) #BBEERKEAR AK2550000007T (8
288,136,00087T) * P EBXA(YWEEE]) -

REBRRER RETVESRAREXFA
R #30,000,000t ERE—HRE-FE_HR
F=HHoHRED 5 H AK¥30,000,0007T
(#934,474,000/ 7T) & A K %40,000,0007T (%
46,497,000/ 7t) E R KRB B F E X 1T © % M &
SHIFIB A R#77,500,000t FERBEHE X
o BRE—HHHRIER AKRY77,500,0005T A
R-ZZE——FHAREEZM -

ZERWANELABRIEFREE -RILSEIA
My RIEREBEZAFEEB ARME231,643,000
7t (#9261,743,0008 T) » DRBEMFTRRR S
REBERBRFRIUTE - R=-F—FFNA
=+—8 EWNKE171,283,0008 T (ZFEEH
F 1 64,0420008 ) ESBEARBEE - RN
REBRE—FAEI B -

FRLAXZHBERRA LA AHMAE-ZFZ
hEFEELR=1TRHZBERRA -
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18. DEFERRED TAX 18. IEELEH H
The major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group and FTEBREADARABEFERBARSEFE
the Company and movements thereon during the current and prior BRANETEELEHEEE (BE) RESFHNT :

reporting years are as follows:

THE GROUP AEME
Accelerated
tax Tax

depreciation losses Others Total

RABERE RIEEE Hity BiE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TFHET FHET FHET

(note)
(Kiat)

At 1st September, 2008 R=ZZEENFHALA—H 2,139 (1,385) (13,295) (12,541)
(Credited) charged to profit or loss  RIBE A (FF A) {1k (333) 193 (183) (323)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZRENA=+—H 1,806 (1,192) (13,478) (12,864)

(Credited) charged to profit or loss ~ RiBz A (- A) R (1,111) 731 (8,344) (8,724)
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFNA=+—H 695 (461) (21,822) (21,588)
Note: These represent mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on Bat - WD EEARAGENARERIAZRMBAT 2E
inventories and unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between BERZEABNRBRREMEEZELER
subsidiaries and deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged BEE UREZETHERSIHHMEATNBRN
on certain PRC and overseas subsidiaries at the amount of HK$2,581,000 FEMBAAEENELERIESE 0 2 51%42,581,000
(2009: HK$2,089,000), HK$2,097,000 (2009: deferred tax liabilities of BT (ZZZNF 12,089,000 T) * 2,097,000
HK$2,540,000) and HK$3,721,000 (2009: HK$3,248,000), respectively. BT (ZEZNE ELEHIEEE2,540,0008 T)

$%3,721,0008 T (ZEZ N F : 3,248,000/ T) °
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
As at 31st August, 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of

approximately HK$434 million (2009: HK$474 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$3 million (2009: HK$7 million) of such losses, which
represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
as it is considered by the management that future taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$431
million (2009: HK$467 million) tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. As at 31st August, 2010, of the above tax losses,
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$276 million (2009: HK$253
million) can be carried forward for five years following the year when the

losses were incurred. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31st August, 2010, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$44 million (2009: HK$24
million) in respect of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment
between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance for
doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

18. JEFE R IH (&)
R=ZZ-ZFFENA=+—H RAEETHFEIE
5 AR 2R B Il Y oK 2 A B TE 5 18 40 43434,000,000
BT (ZFZ N F 474,000,000 7T) © ML 1E
&5 18§ 493,000,000 T (ZFZ AL 1 7,000,000
BL)ERAA—HELEHBEE WAL H
ETHEBARMEENBEESE SHEEE
R F R R FE R BB A A AT K 85 L B IR 4R o
& T #9 % 18 5 18 5431,000,0008 T (ZEE N
£ : 467,000,0005 jT) B K B2 78 81 48 2R (49 B A
REMAEEARELHBEEE - W=
FNA=+—B  LHABEEEF BLEY
276,000,000 T (= Z = S : 253,000,000/ 7T )
TRELEFRFEREFLF -HMKREFSE
A B2 FR PR A 3th 9 1% o

o R=Z—ZFNA=+—8 ELEER
MEBAR 2B HERREFABOREBE RS -
FENARBRAD RERFEREURAER
{L1E & & A9 H £ 7 41080 & B &= £ % 544,000,000
BT (ZFEZENE 24,000,000/ 7T) © HAKEE
EERBBFATFERBELTHRERESR
WAERAZUVNHEREZERELCREBEE
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For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BE—FE-—ZFFNA=1+—HILFE

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
According to the EIT Law, starting from 1st January, 2008, 10%

withholding income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits
earned in the calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the
companies established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong
Kong and holds at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC company,
reduced rate of 5% will be applied. Deferred tax has been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to such profits amounting to HK$31,700,000
(2009: HK$25,340,000). Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$41,551,000 (2009: HK$34,423,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that

the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

reporting purposes:

TEEEE(EE)FBRLE —z-z£58%

mEMB|RMEE

18. BB H (&)

BRELCERER L A_SENF—-HF—H
# o R B R Y WA B MR SMRE E R B E R
“ETN\ERUEAFENRBAEENREESR
M10%FEHEBH - REBIMAL BRFEF
RARPBWERIBREE  KEARTRKRE
5% REERFIBENERSREZEZENGREHTE
¥R % 1F IR AE B 18 8 4%31,700,0008 T (=22
FUEE 25,340,000 JT) © HH RN 7S £ B AT LA 2
TR EZERE 2R MERZERAERA
BERRIAERE  RERKRFEHEQRDRE
BA 2 EEE 241,551,008 T (Z2EFNEF
34,423,000 T) LA S M B WMRAEHELERH
B -

MREEHBRARNENMS & FTELEBIE
EERABCEBE - UTRRERM S HIEL
BIRAER DA

2010 2009

HKS$’000 HKS’000

FET F & T

Deferred tax assets EEHEEE (25,309) (16,111)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHESE 3,721 3,247
(21,588) (12,864)
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

18. IEZE B 1H (&)

THE COMPANY AN

Accelerated

Tax tax
losses depreciation Total
REEFERE RABKEHRESE BE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FHET FHET
At 1st September, 2008 R-ZZEZENFEHLB—H (211) 211 =
Charged (credited) to profit or loss REZRHNRGEA) 171 (171) =
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZRENA=+—H (40) 40 =
(Credited) charged to profit or loss RiBmEA (5FA) kR (66) 66 =
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFNA=+—H (106) 106 =

As at 31st August, 2010, the Company had unused tax losses of
HK$2,502,000 (2009: HK$2,056,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax has been recognised in respect of
HK$649,000 (2009: HK$251,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$1,853,000 (2009:
HK$1,805,000) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

R-ZE—ZFNA=+—8 ' XAFTHER
5 R 2R B FI Y R E A BT 5 18 52,502,00058 TT
—ZZTAF 2,056,000 ) c B IEEE S
#9649,0007% T (ZZZ fLF : 251,000/ T) E &
RA—IBIELERIE o 88 T A9 B 18 &5 181,853,000
B (ZEZNF 1,805,000% 5t) X 5 8678 R
HRBBFREMAREEIARELERBEEE -
RIEF BT ERR A ERF -

19. INVENTORIES 19. #8&
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Spare parts ke 118,224 133,695
Raw materials R 1,006,077 529,883
Work in progress HEm 421,254 270,332
Finished goods SRR MR 393,037 246,846
1,938,592 1,180,756
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20. EXREBEBWRE

2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Trade receivables &2 E W FIE 1,220,305 1,028,545
Bills receivables EEEWRFIE 199,566 132,119
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREME (47,845) (25,582)
1,372,026 1,135,082

The Group allows an average credit period from 30 days to 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills

receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts:

REBRMFIH0REORBBATFHEXEETFS -
LERRBERWFR (BHNKRRKRER) ORE
DT

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Not yet due RE|HR 925,897 630,573
Overdue 1 - 30 days B|H-30K 226,351 186,687
Overdue 31 - 60 days BHA31-60K 128,389 186,197
Overdue > 60 days BHEIEIB0OXR 91,389 131,625
1,372,026 1,135,082

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with a satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the

Group.

FEBREMNEAHEFA  SFEZEER
FHEEEERREHECERE - FEHER
ERTRECERRFNEF -FFFERERE
HFURN -AEEREBEARTEREMNE X
BWFIEDER RIFERARE -
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$446,129,000 (2009:
HK$504,509,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
either settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the
historical experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade debtors. The Group has

20. EX KRB EWKE (5)
BAETE AR B 3 R 1 KA 4 8 P (0

W BRE HAREIE £446,129,000/8 T (Z BB AF :
504,509,000 ) * HRBEMALEBE - AR
EEERIESASHEZESHONRHEESE
BERRBEBELERN{ATFRE  AEE L
EREELREBARE TEBLERZE
HHREEIMIKAR -

BREXRBBRRFHAFR - AEBEEFE

provided fully for all trade and bills receivables over 360 days because BICOAMFIEEXEREBERFIE2HEHRR
historical experience is such that trade and bills receivables that are B DHERBELRBERBIEBIEI0RNE
past due beyond 360 days are generally not recoverable. Trade and bills E¥NEBERWFIE—REEELZRE - 60k £360
receivables between 60 days and 360 days have been provided for based AZBENEERZEERREDRMGTELK
on estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by reference to past OB SEBIRRERTECMTIRERE -
default experience.
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: RIRBE2EBWNT -
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FUEER 25,582 52,132
Impairment loss on trade and bills receivables, net 2 ¥k ZiE EKRFIENREER KL FE 24,870 5,306
Amounts written-off as uncollectible WA AT E £ 58 (2,624) (31,872)
Currency realignment SNEIBE EEE 17 16
Balance at end of the year FHRERR 47,845 25,582

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade and bills receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$47,845,000
(2009: HK$25,582,000) that are considered irrecoverable by management
after consideration on the credit quality of those individual customers,
the ongoing relationship with the Group and the ageing of those

receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RIEBECEES HER478450008 T (=B
JUE 25,582,000/ T) WEGIREZLER Z&
BUWHE EEEREZRZSENEFNEE
BEX HEHASESEERRZSBRRFHENR
RE RRAZERRREEZKE - AEEL
ERZESHEREREEFER -
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trade, bills and other receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

TEEEE(EE)FRLE —z-z£58%

FEMBRRME

20. & xR REE WA (5)
AEENAEEEEB D EEEUNEETE
Mg RERHGERKERIINT :

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

usD X7 623,196 505,331
RMB AR 197,239 137,263

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

21. ERRE - REREMERRIE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEH KA F
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FrET
Value-added tax recoverable Al 3R [B] B E 85,234 84,533 - =
Deposits, prepayments and Ze EARER

other receivables B FE Uy FR 18 124,745 132,575 17,131 2,076
209,979 217,108 17,131 2,076

The Group’s other receivables that are denominated in currencies other
than functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out in

note 20.

AEENEEEEEEIREBUNERTE

B9 EL fth BB U IR SR Y RE 20 ©
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

22. fTEEmI A

THE GROUP TEE
Current Non-current
B ERE

2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Derivative financial assets TTESRMEE
Foreign currency forward contracts RN EE LK 2,514 = - =

Derivative financial liabilities fTESmEE
Foreign currency forward contracts ZEHIINES K 773 = - =
Interest rate swaps F 2= 45 5 - = 54,389 30,898
773 - 54,389 30,898

The principal terms of the foreign currency forward contracts

outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Notional amount Currency conversion

At 31st August, 2010:

17 contracts to sell USD20,000,000 USD1: RMB6.7262 to 6.8129
in total

17 contracts to buy USD20,000,000 USD1: RMB6.6320 to 6.7417
in total

The above foreign currency forward contracts will mature within one

year from the end of the reporting period.

RBEEME  HRIPNEPIESHZETE
REWT :

HEEHE ERBRE

R-ZE-ZEFENA=+—8:

T7THEHE R 1R 5H6.7262F
20,000,0003 T I & 4 6.8129 A R#
17HEAEH 12£ 51663208
20,000,0003 7t & K 6.7417 N R ¥

PREHIIESHNEERERRET —FR
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The principal terms of the interest rate swap outstanding at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

Notional amount

At 31st August, 2010:
2 contracts with HK$1,000,000,000

in total

At 31st August, 2009:
6 contracts with HK$900,000,000

in total

Interest rate swaps

From Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") to fixed rates ranging
from 2.03% to 3.95%

From HIBOR to fixed rates ranging from

2.40% to 4.07%

TEEEE(EE)FRLE —z-z£58%

HEMBRRMEE

2. fTHEER T A (&)
EME:.,\ o MARBBORREH 2 EEHRKAK
mE
HESHE F = 5 5
R-ZE—Z=FNA=+—A8:
2134 $£1,000,000,00088 7t HEBRITEE
HEH /E ([EBRT
BEFENESE
EE N F2.03%

£3.95%

R=ZBEAFENAZ+—8:

617 & $£900,000,00058 T HEBRITRE
HERD KREEBZEEN
F2.40%Z24.07%

The above interest rate swap contracts will mature within the third (2009: FRFREPENEEREPRETE=F (=
fourth) year from the end of the reporting period. EENF ENF)RNIE -
THE COMPANY AT
Current Non-current
B R B
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET F&T
Derivative financial assets TESHMEE
Foreign currency forward contracts ZEHINEE K 2,508 = - =
Derivative financial liabilities fTESmEE
Interest rate swaps F 2 2 B - = 54,389 30,898
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The principal terms of the foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Notional amount Currency conversion
At 31st August, 2010:
17 contracts to buy USD20,000,000 USD1: RMB6.6320 to 6.7417

in total

The above foreign currency forward contracts will mature within one

year from the end of the reporting period.

The principal terms of the interest rate swap outstanding at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:
Notional amount Interest rate swaps
At 31st August, 2010:

2 contracts with HK$1,000,000,000 From HIBOR to fixed rates ranging from

in total 2.03% to 3.95%

At 31st August, 2009:
6 contracts with HK$900,000,000 From HIBOR to fixed rates ranging from

in total 2.40% to 4.07%

The above interest rate swap contracts will mature within the third (2009:

fourth) year from the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of the above derivative instruments are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on quoted
forward exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on
the applicable yield curves of interest rates which were provided by

counterparty financial institutions.

JA
r

2. fTES BT A ()
mﬁmp%*ﬁiﬂ%wE%%EQ%ZIg
R T :

HESHE EwaE

R=B-ZHFN\A=+—-H:

172 BEAEH 13270 5.6.6320%
20,000,000 TTHEHN 67417 AR

FHREHIESHEBRE

E|5 -

HRES —FR

ré*"_

N

RBEPR  HARIFBHNANREEH 2 ETEZHKXA
W
EEEHE R R =

R-EBE-ZSENA=+—8:
2174 $£1,000,000,000/8 T HEBRITEZE

Ve # FREEZEER
N F2.03%FE
3.95%

R-ZBEZAFNA=+—H:

617 & $£900,000,000/8 T HEBRITEZE
K&K FEEZEER
N F2.40%F
4.07%
FRFRIEPENEEREPRETE=ZF (=
ZENE BEMNFE)REIH -
FRGTETENAFEADREBEAREEER
WUHFAEEBREENE AR RIS E

FEENTSABERRERE
R o
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23. BANK DEPOSITS WITH RESTRICTED USE/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

The bank deposits with restricted use as at 31st August, 2009
represented deposits placed by the Group that were with restricted use
for tax or custom duties to be incurred by the Group which would expire
within one year from the end of the reporting period and were therefore
classified as current assets. Short-term bank deposits represent deposits
placed with the banks with maturity of three months or less and are

classified as current assets.

The restricted bank deposits carried market interest rates ranging from
0.36% to 0.72% per annum for the year ended 31st August, 2009. Bank
balances and short term bank deposits carry market interest rates

ranging from 0.01% to 6.10% per annum for both years.

The bank deposits with restricted use, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other than

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

TEEEE(EE)FRLE —z-z£58%

HEMBRRMEE

23. AERHABRZBITER EHR
TERBOLEERAS

R-ZBEAFENA=T-—B ARFBEZR
TERNEASENRITERRERARN
ARAEBEHAREYR ENEAE - Z5ER
FRARZRTER  RESHREF -—FAE
H AUZEERIBARBEE - FHRT
FREFHRREBTIHHABLA=ZEAIUT 27
FooBRARBEE -

REBZE-_ZSZERFENA=+-—BLEE R
#l 2 RATFERTIR T HFERE N F0.36%F0.72%
AR RITEERENRTERAARNEEER
THFREN F0.01%Z£6.10%:T B °

DESEEER DS UIIERAENER
FIRBRcRTER EHRTEARBITES
RBEEHIIMT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rE b N
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
usD e 164,860 159,488 12,845 11,777
RMB AR 129,362 140,033 - S
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

HEMBRRME

24, EENEEEAFIE

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade payables RN RIE 518,923 356,100
Bills payables FEENRIE 348,590 254,759
867,513 610,859

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables:

EEBRNRENREITOT :

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not yet due R EIER 413,674 280,902
Overdue 1 - 30 days BHEI1-30K 61,053 34,074
Overdue 31 - 60 days BHA31-60K 17,801 22,126
Overdue > 60 days BHIRB60KR 26,395 18,998
518,923 356,100

All bills payable of the Group are not yet due at the end of the reporting

period.

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to
120 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to

ensure that payables are within the credit time frame.

RIBEHL
PG

AEBEZBERBREMFRG R

BENTHEERR0REN0R - AEBHDR
EUBEBREERE  UBRAEBCERRGER

FEHRA -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The Group's trade, bills and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

24, EERN EEEAFIE (F)
AEEUAAEEEEE NSNS E
M ZEREGESREHIOT

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

usD X7 405,512 330,760
RMB AR 328,396 219,304

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25. Hib BN RERETEA

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
& KA F]

2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET FET FE T
Other payables (note) H{h S FRIE (FFEE) 163,621 136,511 149 175
Accruals EstEA 168,150 142,622 12,936 14,267
331,771 279,133 13,085 14,442

Note: As at 31st August, 2009 and 2010, the balance included an amount of
HK$19,827,000 in relation to an undertaking that the Group had committed,
at any time after one year from 27th April, 2009, (i) to make an one-off
payment of HK$7,616,000 as compensation to release the Group’s obligation
under an undertaking and operation agreement to a non-controlling
shareholder of Dongguan Fuan and (ii) to acquire the remaining 10%
equity interest in Dongguan Fuan from that non-controlling shareholder at
a consideration of HK$12,211,000. The one-off payment has been settled
subsequent to the reporting period. Further details are set out in the circular

of the Company dated 30th July, 2009.

Wit - R-BEAFER=-Z—-ZFNA=+—8"
é*ﬁ%@%ﬁ%ﬁwsn 00078 7T Tj&ﬂ&%a’dﬁﬁ
BAEAAENR-_ZEAFNA=-+LtAER—
FREMEBOIIRERRZFERRR —
M 147,6160008 T2 HEBERBRAZE
RIEBERBLE SR 2 &E R ALE12,211,000
BIRZEFERBRRAUBENRSERZRT
10% 2 BRAERS - Z—RENRERBREHL
BN - FEFBEHEAERATNBRA-ZZN
FEtA=tHRZBAR -
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

The Group's other payables that are denominated in currencies other
than functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out in

note 24.

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

27. CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
On 27th April, 2009, Folktune, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company, entered into an agreement with certain non-controlling
shareholders of Dongguan Fuan (the “Transferors”) to acquire from the
Transferors in aggregate 39% of the equity interests in Dongguan Fuan at
a total consideration of HK$77,326,205 (the “Share Transfer Agreement”).
Upon completion of the Share Transfer Agreement, Dongguan Fuan

became a 90% owned subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the Share Transfer Agreement, the consideration is payable
by 5 installments. The payable amounts are unsecured and interest-
free. The fair value of the deferred consideration at the date of initial
recognition has been determined as HK$74,433,000 based on the
estimated future cash flows by applying a discount rate of 3.7% per
annum. As at 31st August, 2010, consideration payable of HK$58,446,000
(2009: HK$28,672,000) was classified under current liabilities,
representing the amounts repayable on demand or falling due within

one year of the reporting date.

Details of the above transaction are set out in the circular of the

Company dated 30th July, 2009.

25. A RER BB A (8)
DR EEEE e S A K E A
5 At £ OB A P 24 o

26. RIFEERBRRIE

ZEFIE

WEIEHF REREEREE -

27. ESRE
R-BBAEMA=-++AH AAFAZ—H2
EMBARGEERSETETHERBRE (8

B 1) R MR - BAHB K (E77,326,20578 TTHEE
FEHWBRREE L A% RAER (R

EEEHRZ) RERXREEZIHRR KRR
BEHALDRERONELS ZHEA A °

REREERRZE RE2EHINT -ZEE
NRELEERARGE RIOSHIAHZE
ERE 2D FEEH74,433,0008 7T 0 TIREM
HAARRBRERERUBERII%TE-R=F
—Z2FNA=+—H E{1E58446,000/ T
(ZZEFNF 128,672,000/ T) PEHRBERE
MZRERGEERNEBREAET —FREER

ZFRIE ©

FRLAXZ 2HBEEHRAELT
EhFLtA=tRZEBRR -

ElHHjE:'!—v
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28. DEFERRED INCOME 28. EIE WA

During the year ended 31st August, 2008, the Group received a BE_ZZN\ENB=1+—HLEEE FT5H
government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the purchase of certain assets, B — E BT AE72,912,0008 T BRBESR
which has been deferred to recognise as income over the useful lives of TFEE ABUMEREFEREBEREEZREZEE
the relevant assets upon the fulfillment of the relevant conditions in last EEFREHERAWA - FR » 211,458,000
year. An amount of HK$1,458,000 (2009: HK$1,458,000) was amortised as BT (ZEZNE 1 1,458,0008 7T) BHE B WA
income during the year, with a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax WERERBERAZELEHBEEFHAERERE -

assets previously recognised.

29. RESTRUCTURING PROVISIONS 29. EARE

HK’000

FET
At 1st September, 2008 R-ZFEZENFERLA—H 11,695
Utilisation of provision ERE®B (7,006)
At 31st August, 2009 R=BFERENA=+—8H 4,689
Utilisation of provision ERRE (3,959)
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFFENA=+—8H 730
The provision outstanding is expected to be utilised within one year MAERAZBREROEERSHAET —FR
from the end of the reporting period. BEM-
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30. BANK BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS

30. RITBE HRITEX

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH KAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
HKs’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Bank loans IRITEE 2,174,757 2,229,591 1,532,211 1,848,245
Import bills loans EOMER 381,109 98,965 - =
Bank overdrafts RITEX 3,386 969 - =
2,559,252 2,329,525 1,532,211 1,848,245
Repayable as follows: ARTHISHEEE :
On demand or within one year EEREBES—FR 1,607,977 840,507 658,344 466,163
More than one year, but not —FUEETBAWE
exceeding two years 664,868 640,634 639,066 613,415
More than two years, but not MEULEFRBREE
exceeding five years 286,407 848,384 234,801 768,667
2,559,252 2,329,525 1,532,211 1,848,245
Less: Amounts repayable on demand &, : EEREESH
or due within one year shown —FRIEHEE
under current liabilities BEARBEEERR
- bank borrowings —iRITEE
- due within one year -—FAEH (1,604,591) (839,538) (658,344) (466,163)
- bank overdrafts —RITEX (3,386) (969) - =
Amounts due after one year —FREBEE 951,275 1,489,018 873,867 1,382,082

The above bank borrowings are unsecured at the end of the reporting

period.

RIBEHL  ERPRTEELEIER -
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30. BANK BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS

(continued)
The bank borrowings of the Group and the Company are variable-rate

borrowings which mainly carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging
from 0.4% to 3% (2009: 0.4% to 2.25%) or London Interbank Offered Rate
plus a spread, ranging from 1.9% to 4% (2009: N/A) per annum in Hong
Kong or 100% (2009: 100% to 105%) of the People’s Bank of China Base
Lending Rate per annum in the PRC.

The average effective interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group
and the Company are 2.05% and 1.66% (2009: 2.24% and 1.80%) per
annum, respectively. In addition, the average effective interest rate of the
bank overdrafts of the Group is 3.77% (2009: 4.63%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings and bank overdrafts that are denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

30. RITIEE RITEX (M)

AEBRARQAFANBRTHEEATERAE KA
BEFEREBRITAEREMNLEEZNFFF
F0A%ZE3I% (ZBBNE | 04%E2.25%) M
RITREFEMEEEZENFERZE1.9%E4% (=
ZEZNE  FEANE MATHEETEAR
RITEEERFRI00% (ZEBEZNE : 100%E
105%) °©

AEBRAQAARTEENTFHERFERNZE
DAl 52.05%K1.66% (ZZEZNF :2.24%K
1.80%) o b REBRTEINFEHERE
FZEE377% (ZEZNF : 4.63%) °

FEENEBEEEERIREBUNEBITE
WRTEERBRITEIHIINT :

THE GROUP
rEHE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS’000
FHETT FHET
usD EY 143,423 45,239
RMB AR 35,595 26,256
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. A
Number of
ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each Amount
SR EE0.20/ T
VEBERODBE &8
2010 & 2009 2010 & 2009
HKs’000
FHETT
Authorised: EERA
At beginning and end of the year RREERKBRAER 1,400,000,000 280,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBZRKRAE :
At beginning and end of the year REFERBRALR 794,010,960 158,802
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32. SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”), which will expire on
24th January, 2012, was adopted by the Company at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 25th January, 2002. The primary purpose of the
Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible mean of giving
incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the employees and for such other purposes as the board of
directors of the Company may approve from time to time. Under the
Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may offer to full
time employees, including full time executive directors, of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation period options
to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme for the consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share
options granted. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme. The Company may seek approval from shareholders of
the Company in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the
Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any employee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue, subject to approval
from shareholders of the Company. Options granted must be taken
within 28 days of the date of grant or such longer or shorter period
as the board of directors of the Company may think fit. The minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised is
one year or such other period as the board of directors of the Company
may think fit commencing from the date of grant (“Hold-up period”).
An option period, at the absolute discretion of the board of directors
of the Company, shall commence on the expiry of the Hold-up period
and expire no later than the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the board of directors of the Company

and will be at least the highest of the followings:

HEMBHRRME

32. AR HE
—ERR-E-—E—-B-+NARKNR

BB (RRESSDCEARAR-ZEC
F-A-THBRTHRREHAE LRH -
AREABENTIRENRAI LA TAEES
BB RE B WERIREBRAR
AREESETHHANEMBENMS R -
BEEAX - REIARENE  AXTES
EUERREFINERBETFEA2ARHH
MEBLARERARRBNERES (BE2RBI
TES)RREURBARARED  SREZR
RENKERET REDREEIFREN
AREMBITHNROAE  BSTHEB
BB EEANE BITROLEMNI0%
ARABAERRAS LSRRRMME  FHU
10%HEY EFR = bb5h - REBZRE IR A D FE
AEMRKRET S REEERTENRRE
BOEMBITHNROAY  BZFAHEEBERL
AT EFE B AT IR (7 B B#930% (RARE LR R
BRFNBRS LK) - REBRR#IESN » EF—
NEEREMT-EASNER  HETESE
ERRENROALE BEZAEEBALFCE
BRITRODABHENI% BELEEARRERLA
E2EAR AN A ESTESARHRRBEENHA
BRADNENEAEAMERTNIARE - &
BXARIREHABRH —FRA2AESE
AHEALBEENELHE (HEH) HFERAR
BE  FAELHRE RBEHHAQXAESS
REHREREES  SASEHERKMES
ERTERBREARTBFERER RABEAE
NRESERTE - EXARUT=ZFEPHNESE
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32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 32. BB E (&)

a) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option; a) RORIRERLEBEHWTE

b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days by ROMRZREFLBZADEEXBRNT
immediately preceding the date of grant; and HRHE: &

c)  the nominal value of a share. 0 BHOMSBREME-

No share options were granted or exercised during the year and no share KEE BAREEREESITERREAFR

options were outstanding during the year or at the end of the reporting HREMRTEIRELE SR - NIREWRE

period. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group has REBFRHIABRETFETFEERATHITESE L

granted share options to certain executive directors of the Company and FEARAREMNBARZE TREE - EER

certain employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. Details of the HEFEER A 42 o

grant are set out in note 42.

33. RESERVES 33. i fe
THE COMPANY
AT
Capital
Share redemption Retained
premium reserve profits Total
=
% 1335 8 & E 1% 5 REER wE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st September, 2008 R=ZZEENFHAA—H 197,124 210 529,624 726,958
Profit for the year =FEER - - 568 568
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZRENA=+—H 197,124 210 530,192 727,526
Profit for the year =FEEEF - - 89,369 89,369
At 31st August, 2010 R-ZE—ZFNA=+—H 197,124 210 619,561 816,895
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in note 30 and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-
going basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption

of existing debt.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

HEMBRRME

3. EXEBER
AEEEEEAZEN  ERARRAEESE
BELUBALSY AREAMESESEER>
BHWRETE SREBEASHEAER-
AEEOBREEBETE Ko

AEENERRBEEER (EPEBEME0M
BRENEE) RAQAEAARGLER (BES
BITRARHE)

FRABRESREEEERNELRB - FAR
H—#o EEEEZEBELANRARZHER
HWEERR - REESNESR FA5EKESR
RBERE -BRTHRRBEARMERETHE
BRAMOREEBAFHREBESERS -

35. T A
@) 2@IAEESR

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
TEHE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FET
Financial assets SEMEE
Loans and receivables (including ERRkEWRFIE (B
cash and cash equivalents) BekZERBELER) 2,270,113 2,241,814 3,185,126 3,225,712
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIT A 2,514 = 2,508 =
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost 18 86 B A 3,650,470 3,169,099 2,200,696 2,334,927
Derivative financial instruments fTESBIA 55,162 30,898 54,389 30,898
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group and the Company include
consideration receivable, trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from/to subsidiaries, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, bank deposits, bank balances and cash, derivative financial
instruments, trade and bills payables, other payables, consideration
payable, bank borrowings and bank overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

Market risk
(i)  Currency risk
Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. The Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts

to mitigate the risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities and derivative
financial instruments of the Group and the Company that are considered

significant by the management are as follows:

TEEEE(EE)FRLE —z-z£58%

HEMBRRMEE

35. 2T B (&)
(b) HEERESEEERKE

REERARANTEESHT EBERKRKE -
EERFEHERUNRE HOBWRE  WEBLQ
BFR/RHERRHRKIE - RFZRBRRH
RE-RTEFHR - RITEEREES - TEER
TR -EXRFEBEMNRE HOEBCRIE
EARE -RTEERRBRTEX -ZZETEMT
AvHFBERZMEPIRE HZEEMIA
FENEAREETSRR (E¥EARRAERE
) EERBRRABDESERE - TXHIIEE
nmAREZERARNBEK EEEEERERE
ZERE - BARRENERRIGEE S

T 35 [ Bk

(i) E#¥mEbk

FEEETERANERS  MAKES R
MR o

REBEEREENERRE UBRARRENE
BRMBEREE AEECEITEHNES
2o LR EZERRE -

RESHL EEERRBEANETEERSE
RALNEIENEREEREBRITESH
TEWREENT :
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk (continued)

35. 2T B (&)
(b) HMERRSEEERIE(H)

™ % Ak ()
(i) E#EL(E)

Monetary assets and liabilities: EMEERAE:
THE GROUP
AEE
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET FETT FHET
usD En 788,056 664,819 548,935 375,999
RMB AR 497,884 510,010 363,991 245,560
THE COMPANY
AT
Assets Liabilities
& afE
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HKs’000 HK$’000 HKs000
FHET FET FHETT FET
usD EY 12,845 11,777 - =
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EEE¥(RE)FARSS

35. £ T B (&)

SE-BEEH L

FEMBRRME

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) BIBEREEEEREE (&)
Market risk (continued) ™% Ak ()
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) BEBEE (&)
Derivative financial instruments: TR IA:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
HKS’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS’000
FHETT FHET FAETT FHET
Derivative financial assets THEemEE
Foreign currency forward EHARBREA
contracts to sell RMB ETNEHNESH
and buy USD 2,514 - 2,508 -
Derivative financial liabilities TEERaE
Foreign currency forward EAARBRER
contracts to buy RMB ETMEBRMNEESYN
and sell USD 773 = - -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As HKS is pegged with USD, currency risk in relation to USD denominated
monetary assets/liabilities is expected to be minimal. The Group is mainly

exposed to the risk of fluctuation of RMB.

The following tables detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against HKS for both years. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and derivative financial instruments and adjusts their translation

or fair value in the case of derivative financial instruments at the year

35. 2T B (&)
(b) HMERRSEBERKE(H)

% E ke ()

() E#EL(E)

BRAE DT

HABTEETHSE HHAEEUAETIEN
EMEE SENEBAREN AKEXE

BRARYREE RS

TRAMEINAEERMEFERARE LB
TIHERBESRHNBRE - 5% R @A EZEEA
BEAMEHIIERBREEEHERTESE
------- SENFLARANSREL R - HRED
EEEEREEUNEIENER R RITE
EEMITE  YRFERWNINEXSHHEH
BREFMEESMIACAFEE RIHEE.
EARBLBIER%  AFEMABNEE

end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. On this basis, there will B CRA) » R2ZINAR
be an increase (a decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year where RMB
strengthens against HKS by 5%, and vice versa.
Monetary assets and liabilities: EREERARE:
THE GROUP
AEE
RMB Impact
ARMHE
2010 2009
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FET
Increase (decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year REEF A BRI G ) 6,695 13,223
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EEEE(EE)ERLS —s-sres %

35. @ T B (&)

HEMBRRMEE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) BIBEKMEEAERKE (&)

Market risk (continued)
(i)  Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

™ % @k (&)

(i) E#ELR(H)

BRE D (&)

Derivative financial instruments: THEERTIA:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HKs’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FET FHET FET
Foreign currency forward EHARBREA
contracts to sell RMB ENWRBMNESH
and buy USD 7,792 - 7,792 -
Foreign currency forward BEAARBREH
contracts to buy RMB ETHRBNESH
and sell USD (7,795) - - -

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
primarily in relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings.
It is the Group's policy to keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated
borrowings. In order to minimise the risk, the Group entered into certain
interest rate swaps to partially hedge against its exposure to variable-

rate bank borrowings.

(i) FIF m B

AEBRAQRTANRERENRA KR EEEZ
ERTEGREEERE AEBNBRRER
HERTEERZHAEUREAFEENER
e AEBMNESRENREAREIEETRE
BRITEEFERBACIBAEB B TIE
WEE - ARERR  AEEHTE TAEXRE
B URZERITEENFRERETIRAE M o



FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2010

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2010
BEZ-—F-—ZFFNNA=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both non-derivative (including variable-
rate borrowings only as the directors consider the exposure on bank
balances is not significant) and derivative instruments at 31st August,
2009 and 2010. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 (2009: 50) basis points increase or decrease in
interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s and the Company’s pre-tax profit for the year would decrease/
increase by HK$12,796,000 and HK$7,661,000 (2009: HK$11,648,000 and
HK$9,241,000), respectively.

For derivative financial instruments, if HIBOR had been 50 basis points
higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s and
the Company’s pre-tax profit for the year would increase by the same

amount of HK$13,216,000 (2009: HK$8,587,000), and vice versa.

Credit risk

As at 31st August, 2010, the maximum exposure to credit risk by the
Group and the Company which will cause a financial loss due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees

provided is arising from:

. the carrying amounts of the recognised financial assets as stated in

the statements of financial position; and

HEMBRRME

35. 2T B (&)
(b) HMERRSEEERIE(H)

™ % Ak ()
(ii) 7% Bz (48)
BRAE DT

THBRESMBEBEFTETA (EREZEE
E AEZAAMUBTERIEAEZREBRIL T
ERNRTETAR-ZEZEAER=-Z-ZEN
A=+-HNAZEABEE BEI T IRR
RESHAEREENEEBHREAFEESF
ERGAREZE RMEIEEEASANH2RF
REBTIRASME (ZZEFNF 50E) M
i RREEBHNRAESEZ BT -

MIETERTEEMS » MFIEEFH TS50
BER MAEHMEHERTIE  DEAEE
REQATDNEFEERBRFE S BUR LD,/ 180
12,796,0007% T §7,661,0008 5T (Z T Z S F :
11,648,0007% 7T }% 9,241,000/ 7T) ©

ROTEESRITAMS  WEBRTEEFEL
Ao EE MABEMERAERTE  AX
SEERADNBDNAFERABRAZIZNER
£ %13,216,000/ Jt (ZZZ JL F : 8,587,000/
) RZIR o

EERE

R=ZZB-—Z2FNA=+—H AEEREXAH
HEFAAREBTEARREUMEERMER
BEBANESEERARIDENTSEELE

- BBRRRFE2ICERASHEENRE
B R
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial

guarantees issued by the Company as disclosed in note 38.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only
made to customers with good repayment history. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and
individual basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. A net impairment loss of HK$24,870,000
(2009: HK$5,306,000) in respect of the trade and bills receivables was
recognised by the Group for the year. Furthermore, the Company
only provides financial guarantees to its subsidiaries after a careful
consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial conditions. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s and the Company'’s

credit risk are significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group and the Company is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and consideration
receivable which is due from one counterparty, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties. The directors of the Company consider the
default risk of consideration receivable is low in view of the subsequent

settlement of RMB77,500,000 in October 2010.

TEEEE(EE)FRLE —z-z£58%

HEMBRRMEE

35. €@ T A (&)

(b) HEEMEEEERBE ()

EERB (8)
HiEEseAT ik BA R A D A T8 LB KB R
CHAE BN -

RHREBECERR AEENEEBZER—
HABEESEECFERE FEEMRAME
EREF UEGREINRETHREAHESE-
EREEHEERETEAERIEARRENE
Foltoh "EEBESEMERERREARNEER
HEEMARERE ARRRE L RERE
EHEHWREEBL - TR AEECHEE
T B2 5 FE WUk T8 1 SRR (B 18 Ok 7F {E124,870,00058
T (ZZFEFNF 153060008 7T) © Lo KD
AEREEZEHNB AN BERREEST @
HMEARARUMBER -REMS > A2 A
EERATEEREAATANEERBE KIBHIK o

AEERAAANADESEERRER B
WEFHREAREETREBATEEEIR
B4R o

RERRETEEEMRABTHRBEER —
BHRFLRANERREFEEFEERBI
AEEYEMHEAEFEERAR  ERRS
BRZEHFH - ALQGRESAE  BRRE
ZENEBRBEEMEEREENR-Z-—2F+
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s and the Company’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures

compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group and the Company relies on bank
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31st August, 2010,
the available unutilised banking facilities of the Group and the Company
are approximately HK$1,932 million and HK$713 million (2009: HK$1,673

million and HK$263 million), respectively.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivatives financial liabilities (including foreign currency forward
contracts and interest rate swaps contracts) based on the agreed
repayment terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and the
Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the

reporting period.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted net
cash flows are presented. Whereas they require gross settlement, the
undiscounted gross outflow (inflow) on these derivatives are shown on

the tables.

HEMBHRRME

35. £ T A (&)

(b) BIBEABEERERKE ()
FBESER

REBRBELABRE AEERAATYE
ERAREEERAREAKTINESREEAR
2EE  UBGAEEARAADLERERR
ERESFERDNFE -TEEEBRRTE
EHERBR  LEARUTHBERRE -

BREZN AEERARAARGERTEEER
FTERDESRR - R=B—ZFENA=+—
B AEERAARMNABAERERNERT
EE %5 5% 51,932,000,0005% T K 713,000,000
BT (ZZZFNAEF 1,673,000,0008 T K&
263,000,0005& T) °

TRHAVRBZEEEBERIARERAAFFE
TTEEREERTESHEBE(BRENMES
WRFAZREHEN)NBRTERINMER - B
TTEEREE BRDEBRFAEEARAQAT
RERERNFNEZFEINRESHEEARE
BREREFH ZREEFINERESRER
B-AENEREAFTHANRZRER  RBHR
THRIHABEHRR 2FREE -

FHAEENTTEIR  UAMRAREREFE
25 - MFUBBREE  ZETETENRE
BRH ORA) BEHIRT R -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. 2R T B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) BIBEKMEEAERKE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) ENE S ER (&)
THE GROUP &
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months tolyear  Over1year cash flows 2010
R=%2-%%
mE¥E  ASR-EA A KBRS NA=t-A
BXAE FEERXR —-Z=f@R E-F BE-F mELE WEEE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FiEx FiEx FiEx &z FiEx FiEx
2010 Z%-%F
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ %14 ¢MEE
Trade, bills and other payables ¥ ZERAMENTE - 448,131 450,823 53,466 252 952,672 952,672
Amounts due to non-controlling RERRBRRAE
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Consideration payable ERARE 3.70 - 35,630 23,501 - 59,131 58,446
Bank borrowings RITEE 213 270,852 1,148,453 216,136 969,556 2,604,997 2,555,866
Bank overdrafts RITEX 6.81 3,405 - - - 3,405 3,386
802,488 1,634,906 293,103 969,808 3,700,305 3,650,470
Derivatives - net settlement fETR-NFREE
Interest rate swaps Rl 0.07 - 5,718 12,159 36,550 54,427 54,389
Derivatives - gross settlement fTETA-NARLE
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ EHISERHY
- outflow i 23,344 62,250 54,469 - 140,063 N/A
- inflow -HA (23,307) (61,927) (54,056) - (139,290) N/A
37 323 413 - 73 773
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. €@ T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) MEEMREREBZERBEE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REELER (&)
THE GROUP K&
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months tolyear  Over1year cash flows 2009
RZBE2NE
mE¥E  SR-fA FERRE NA=t-A
AMF = FEEX -Z=fif Z@AZ-% BE-F hEsE WEREE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx &z
2009 ZEERNE
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Trade, bills and other payables g% ZER
At EATE - 315,466 318,451 50,569 - 684,486 684,486
Amounts due to non-controlling RERRRRFE
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Consideration payable EfRE 3.70 9,097 9,097 12,130 47,002 71326 74,988
Bank borrowings RITEE 192 301,183 172,659 399,891 1,530,689 2404422 2,328,556
Bank overdrafts RITEX 463 972 - - - 972 969
706,818 500,207 462,590 1,577,691 3,247,306 3,169,099
Derivatives - net settlement fIETIA-NFRER
Interest rate swaps =B 046 1,721 6,231 13,59 9,828 31,039 30,898
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. @M T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) BIBEKMEEAERKE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) RENE SRR (&)
THE COMPANY /N
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months Over1 undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to 1year year cash flows 2010
R=2-%%
mE¥y  SR-fEAR =f8A KBRS NA=t-H
BRAE HEERXR -E=fA E-F BB-F RELE HWEREE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TEr TEr TEr TEr Tér
2010 It
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEERER
Amounts due to subsidiaries THBARRE - 668,485 - - - 668,485 668,485
Bank borrowings RTEE 1.60 212,052 454,792 10,168 886,698 1,563,710 1,532,211
Financial guarantee contracts HBERED - 2,561,344 - - - 2,561,344 -
3,441,881 454,792 10,168 886,698 4,793,539 2,220,696
Derivatives - net settlement fTETA-NRELE
Interest rate swaps FlZBE 0.07 - 5,718 12,159 36,550 54,427 54,389
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

HEMBHRRME

35. 2T B (&)
(b) HMERRSEBERKE(H)

Liquidity risk (continued) REELER (&)
THE COMPANY AN/
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to1year  Over1year cash flows 2009
R-BBRE
mE¥y  SR-fA AERREE NB=t-H
BHA= FEERX -ZE=ff =M@AE-% BB-F hE#E HEREE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TET FET TET Tér TEr
2009 ZBRAE
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Other payables Hitt 8 - 29 - - - 29 29
Amounts due to subsidiaries RHBRRHE - 486,653 - - - 486,653 486,653
Bank borrowings RITEEE 148 69,787 145,519 276,908 1,412,754 1,904,968 1,848,245
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREH - 2,723,900 - - = 2,723,900 =
3,280,369 145,519 276,908 1,412,754 5,115,550 2,334,927
Derivatives - net settlement fIETR-NFEAE
Interest rate swaps FlZ=EH 046 1,721 6,231 13,259 9,828 31,039 30,898

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the

maximum amounts the Company could be required to settle under the

arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by

the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of

the reporting period, the Company considers that it is more likely than

not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However,

this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the

counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the

likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which

are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

LA BRGNS HEEMERYFAINE
HERESBREP R AXQXTARBERARH
ARBRETZESER RERBEHLZ
B AREARRBIEBEARBARLEX
NEMEE AT WA ATERE  R¥Y
FARBERRBHARZAIEML ML ATREM
AIARFHFIFEUZER 2 UBERA
AZEEBBZIREMEME -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates

determined at the end of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined

as follows:

the fair value of derivative financial instruments are calculated
using generally accepted pricing models based on quoted forward
exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on the
applicable yield curves of interest rates provided by counterparty

financial institutions.

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models

based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurement recognised in the statements of financial
position

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value and grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which

the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) on active market for identical assets or

liabilities.

EEEE(EE)ERLS —ssseg 0
35. €@ T A (&)
(b) BHEEIEE BB R ()
FBES AR (H)
WIBREZ B ERRRBEPRFEE 2
ETE T RS F ey A

TRAZEHETRERE -

(0 AF¥EE
CRHEERSHABNATEANEUTERE :

||P

TTESHITANATEEDNRAREER

X WUAHFHUBEBRANBEARER

WHRTEEN T SERERRBRR
mEDMEEME -

- HtsRMEERESBMEBEENAFTEEDR
BAREEEARMRRERES M ME
F o

EERREREUBHRRANBHELARARD
TRHEERERMABNREAERRENDFE
(R EE=IY

REBBRREZER 2 AP EEFE

RERABARAATFEEFEZUBTALE

RATEELAVEERESI R —E=R-

- B-RAFEEHEDEHEREERRE
RERMEP Z|E CRERR)FEH -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurement recognised in the statements of financial

position (continued)

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices).
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s and the Company’s

derivative financial instruments are grouped into Level 2 category.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year.

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

35. 2T B (&)
(0 ATEEGE
REMERREER > AFEETE (R

- BIRATVEEREDRE-RABEZ

BEN BEEREBETEE (NER) R
B (BERTE)BRZBARESE -

- BERATEESEDLNUERFALIER
BUBETSHECEEREBIBAR
B(EIEEQARE) 2HERESE -

REBEEHL  AEERAQXRAMETEERT
BERERE-REH -

FRIEN = BERE 2 BFLHEE -

36. EAKIE

THE GROUP
rEE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition MEREBEEYME  HERREN
of property, plant and equipment contracted EENEEGEUBBRERAE
for but not provided in the consolidated EHBENEREX
financial statements 34,777 73,268
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition MEBRBEYHE  HBERIZEN
of property, plant and equipment authorised EMEEREINEREX
but not contracted for 29,612 23,353

The Company had no significant capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period.

RBEHL  ARBAEE RN EREIE -
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37. OPERATING LEASES 37. EHE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA
THE GROUP
rEE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments paid under operating =EEREEREmMZMAN
leases during the year: BEEEZ S
Land and buildings T RETF 46,639 48,568
Plant and machinery R S 1 28 13,389 15,546
60,028 64,114
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RBEHR FXEERTUTBUEEEREN K
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases REREELHAERTIZEEA XA
which fall due as follows:
THE GROUP
rEE
2010 2009
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings  machinery buildings machinery
THREF HEKE ITHREF B S M 2]
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FHETT FETT
Within one year —FR 48,083 7,754 46,894 8,547
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERER
(BERMERFEAR) 112,299 21,861 126,480 22,689
Over five years BFEUE 46,147 10,459 59,309 15,370
206,529 40,074 232,683 46,606
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37. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and factories. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to twenty five years for land and buildings and
from one to ten years for plant and machinery. There is no contingent

rental arrangement.

The Group as lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group
during the year was HK$2,849,000 (2009: HK$5,380,000). The related
outgoings amounted to HK$259,000 (2009: HK$725,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants, in respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum

lease payments:

HEMBRRME

37. £ EHE (&)

AEBEREEA (H)
SERBEXHNAEEREETRAEZRIR
MEMHS SHEENASFORTERES
BNF—ZE=+HEE2H ABEEREBANT
—E+EZM o WRERAAS R -

TEEERHBEA
TEEREBRBRENEMRESNHEHS WAL
{8 452,849,000/ 7t (== N §F : 5,380,000/
7t) o HBEBEMNEH 5259,0008 T (ZEENF:
725,00058 7T) ©

THE GROUP
rEH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR - 4,747
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERFRA
(BERWMEERFEERN) - 2,196
- 6,943

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments or

arrangements at the end of the reporting period.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY

The Company has given limited guarantees to various banks to secure
general banking and loan facilities granted to certain subsidiaries to the
extent of HK$2,561,344,000 (2009: HK$2,723,900,000). As at 31st August,
2010, the aggregate amounts utilised by these subsidiaries amounted to

HK$1,375,631,000 (2009: HK$830,506,000).

RB|ERL AR ABERNEERSRIE

AAFCMEEETHTERINEREZES
2,561,344,0007% T (= &= Ju ¥ : 2,723,900,000
B ERZERTHTETHEARD-—RE
HREFRNER RZZE-ZFNA=+—-H>
ZEMB LR ERNETES1,375631,000/ 7T
(ZZZNF : 830,506,000/& 7T) ©
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39. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
For the year ended 31st August, 2010

During the year, the Group deregistered its wholly-owned subsidiary, 2
B EEHBERAE.

39. HE— R E A A
BE-_Z-—-ZENA=1+—HLEE
ERAEFICEIMEEHNBLATNEED
EEHBERAT -

HKS’000
FET
Net assets retained in the Group upon disposal: HEREASEREZEEFE
Bank balances and cash RTEERERES 6,680
Translation reserve released B AEED (766)
Gain on disposal HEMRSWE 766

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
On 3rd August, 2009, the Group disposed of its entire interest in the
issued capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Fountain Set (U.K.) Limited.

The net assets of Fountain Set (U.K.) Limited at the date of disposal were

BE-_SEFAENA=+—-HLEE

R-ZEZANFNA=ZR AEEHE—BZ2E
i /B 2 AlFountain Set (U.K.) Limited® 21T IR A
Z 2 ° Fountain Set (U.K.) Limited/ &

as follows: HEIZEEFEOT :
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed of: HENEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W BBEREE 151
Other receivables H fih pE Uk TR 18 350
501
Translation reserve released [ 5 1% 88 (570)
(69)
Gain on disposal HEMBWE 544
Total consideration satisfied by deferred DEEREAL XA RELRE
consideration 475

The deferred consideration was settled during the current year.

EERESERAFERAZM -
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the
eligible employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees. The retirement benefits cost charged to the profit or
loss represents the contributions payable to the funds by the Group at

rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate
in state-sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes
operated by the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with

respect to the schemes is to make the required contributions.

As at 31 August, 2010, there was no significant forfeited contribution
(2009: Nil), which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits

schemes, available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of forfeited
contributions of HK$324,000 (2009: HK$49,000), amounting to
HK$27,748,000 (2009: HK$24,560,000) have been charged to profit or
loss for the year and included in employee benefits expense as set out in

note 9.

40. 3R K48 R 5 &
AEBMRBEHERATEROEMA L —HE
BB (HERATE)) RREEFED
BEFERMRL -—ERHAMELESHE (2
REABD FTHECERNAEEEBES -
EMEFANEENHEIABLSEARER -
ERSEAHBRNRABAREDRNEBRE
BB E L R E MR B -

REBHMAEHENEERESEZA A
BRFEENBZRKRE R EHERERE
- AEBHEARRBEFHNE TEILLHRT
ZEGFEERBEANES AEBEHZETEN
H-SERBRAEEHMER -

R-ZZ-ZFENA=1+—-—R0 HAEERH
BAGEMERNERETER (ZBEN
) WRORI A A AEHIRR R E AV AR

H=RON
-3

ERAFERERR AN HRKEKEF 8 #
REEEFEB27,748,0008 T (ZEZE N & :
24,560,000/ jt) - B H B R % W /Y 4t X
324,000/ T (ZZZE A F : 49,0008 T) - L E
SFAM B EERFIRAXA -
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41. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set

out in the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 26.

Details of the Company’s outstanding balances with related parties are

set out in the statement of financial position and in note 16.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

during the year was as follows:

EEEE(EE)ERLS —s-sres %

HEMBRRMEE

4. HEBATWIEE
(a) AEBALHEE

AEEHEEBEATNERFRAIINRGES K
MR TR KM EE26 ©

AAFEBBEATHERFBEHINEHERR
RRHMEE167

(b) TEEEAESNFHM
REEEERAEMETEEEASHHFHUT :

THE GROUP
rEE

2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Short-term benefits = H1E Al 27,513 31,173
Post-employment benefits BB 23R A 921 1,069
28,434 32,242

The remuneration of directors and key management is determined by
the board of directors having regard to the performance of individuals

and market trends.

EERTEEBABNFHM I HESSRESR
RERTHBEMEE -
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42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company granted

share options to certain executive directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for a total
of 22,400,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each in the capital of the
Company with an exercise price of HK$1.29 per ordinary share, pursuant
to the Option Scheme. Among the 22,400,000 share options granted,
11,200,000 share options were granted to the following directors of the

Company:

Name of director

HEMBRRME

42, REHREIE

RBEPRE XA RBRURBRETFARAE
TEHATEZURKRQAAREMBE AR <& T
ZEE  URBERREAEZBELRDTREH
& $£22,400,0008% & IR H 150.20/8 T 2 E B IR -
THEEASRETER I 29BT -HREREZ
22,400,00017 B E # - 11,200,00017 72 IR #
ERTFAARTIES:

Number of

share options granted

EENF EREAREHAR
Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor ERTRE 4,600,000
Mr. Ha Hon Kuen EEREE 2,000,000
Dr. Yen Gordon BEHEL 4,600,000

11,200,000

The directors of the Company are in the process of ascertaining the
fair value of the share options and therefore the financial impact to the

Group has not been disclosed.

Further details of the share options granted are set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 17th September, 2010.

RARESIERERREZAFEE At
RERBHHUAEB 2 UBLE -

FHERHEAREZE-DHBENALQA A
MA-ZE-ZEFNA+LtHZBER -



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION Bz SR & ¥l

Listing :  Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 20th April, 1988

Stock Code 420
Board Lot : 2,000
Par Value HK$0.20

Shares Issued 794,010,960

Financial Calendar 2010/2011

Financial year ended 31st August, 2010

Full year results announced 10th December, 2010
Register of members closed 17th-20th January, 2011
Annual general meeting 20th January, 2011
Dispatch of dividend warrants 10th February, 2011

2011 Interim results to be announced  Late April 2011

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
17th January, 2011 to Thursday, 20th January, 2011, both days inclusive,

during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company'’s share registrar:

Tricor Secretaries Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel +852 2980 1766

Fax +852 2861 1465

Investor Relations
Ms Charmaine CHENG

Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Manager

Block A, 6/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel +852 3478 7017

Email pr@fshl.com
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Global Network | IBFk484%
FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
EHEYE (EE)ERAT

Block A, 6/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building,
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

BANRZAES1E29-395%
RIBTEKEAEGFE

Tel E5E +852 2485 1881

aly

W

Fountain Set has overseas marketing/representative offices in the following locations. Addresses, phone numbers and fax numbers
are listed at www.fshl.com

BEEENRTIHERGEIMISERNSEE/ARE, i, EERBREERESTIBEWWW.fshl.compy
Toronto _ Ho Chi Minh City . Seoul . Shanghai . Shenzhen o Singapore

Zfw% EHS AT =L tis g7zl HNsK

Production facilities are set up in the following countries:

R RSB B L A

China o Indonesia 4 SriLanka
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